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1

2                       PROCEEDINGS

3             JUDGE JONES: We're on the record.  Good

4 morning.  I call for Hearing Docket Number 13-0192.

5 This is entitled Ameren Illinois Company d/b/a Ameren

6 Illinois, proposed general increase in gas rates.

7             At this time we will take the appearances

8 orally for the record.  We will start with those

9 physically present in the Springfield room.  In

10 entering your appearance if you have already done so

11 at Pre-Hearing Conference of Status Hearing you need

12 not repeat all your contact information unless you

13 simply prefer to do that or it has changed.

14             We will start with the appearance or

15 appearances on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company.

16             MR. FITZHENRY:  Thank you, Your Honor.  My

17 name is Edward Fitzhenry, F-I-T-Z-H-E-N-R-Y, entering

18 my appearance on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company as

19 well as the appearances of Matthew Tomc, T-O-M-C, and

20 Eric Dearmont, D-E-A-R-M-O-N-T.

21             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Other appearances

22 from those physically present in Springfield?

23             MR. STURTEVANT: Yes, sir.  Good morning,

24 Your Honor.  Also appearing on behalf of Ameren
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1 Illinois Company from the law firm of Whitt

2 Sturtevant, Albert Sturtevant, S-T-U-R-T-E-V-A-N-T;

3 Christopher Kennedy and Anne Zehr, Z-E-H-R.  Our

4 information has been previously provided.

5             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Other appearances?

6             MR. OLIVERO: Your Honor, appearing on

7 behalf of the staff witnesses of the Illinois Commerce

8 Commission, Christine Ericson, John Sagone and Jim

9 Olivero and our addresses and phone numbers have been

10 previously provided.

11             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

12             MR. O'BRIEN: Good morning.  On behalf of

13 the people of the Stat of Illinois, Timothy O'Brien

14 and Sameer, S-A-M-E-E-R, Doshi, D-O-S-H-I, Office of

15 the Illinois Attorney General.  Address and telephone

16 information have been previously entered.

17             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Are there any

18 other appearances to be entered by those who are in

19 Springfield?

20             MR. ROBERTSON: On behalf of IIEC, Ryan

21 Robertson.

22             JUDGE JONES: Could you hear that in

23 Chicago?

24             MR. SAGONE: No, Your Honor.
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1             JUDGE JONES: We'll try again.

2             MR. ROBERTSON: On behalf of the Illinois

3 Industrial Energy Consumers, Ryan Robertson.

4             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Are there any

5 other appearances to be entered by those who are in

6 Springfield today?

7             Let the record show there are not.

8             Turning to those who are participating from

9 Chicago and whose appearances have not already been

10 entered, are there other appearances to be entered at

11 this time?

12             MS. SODERNA: Your Honor, on behalf of the

13 Citizens Utility Board, Julie Soderna, S-O-D-E-R-N-A,

14 and Christie Hicks.

15             MR. VOHR: Your Honor, on behalf of the

16 Retail Gas Suppliers, Steven Vohr.  Information

17 previously submitted at the last hearing.

18             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

19             MR. FOX: Gerard T. Fox, appearing on behalf

20 of the Illinois Competitive Energy Association and the

21 Retail Energy Supply Association.

22             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Are there any

23 other appearances to be entered by anyone who is

24 participating from Chicago?
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1             All right.  Let the record show there are

2 not at least at this time.

3             With respect to the witness lineup and

4 process submitted earlier, are there some changes that

5 have been made since the last list was distributed?

6             MR. STURTEVANT: Yes, Your Honor, at least

7 one since the last list has been circulated and that

8 is there is no longer any cross for Mr. Ostrander.

9 And we also have updated lists available here in the

10 hearing room for anybody who wants one.

11             MR. OLIVERO: Judge, and then I was also

12 going to add I have just spoken with Matt Tomc about

13 Ryan Martin was supposed to go last today, but we are

14 moving him to Wednesday, August 28th.

15             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

16             MR. STURTEVANT: Your Honor, given there are

17 folks in Chicago, it makes sense to revise the list

18 again and email it to the parties.

19             JUDGE JONES: That would probably be a good

20 idea.

21             Before I proceed with that question, let me

22 mention one thing.  Since the court reporter is here

23 in Springfield, anyone who is participating from

24 Chicago please identify yourself before you speak.
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1             Also, if anyone is having trouble hearing

2 anybody else just let us know and we'll do whatever we

3 need to do to fix that problem.

4             Before proceeding with the cross

5 examination of the witnesses are there any other

6 preliminary matters that anyone thinks needs to be

7 addressed?

8             MR. STURTEVANT: I have two, Your Honor.

9             JUDGE JONES: Mr. Sturtevant?

10             MR. STURTEVANT: The first is the company

11 filed a Motion, I believe on March 7th, for the

12 admission of Mr. Kennedy pro hoc vice.  I don't

13 believe the Motion has been acted on, so I wanted to

14 bring that to your attention.

15             JUDGE JONES: Were there any objections

16 filed with respect to that?

17             MR. STURTEVANT: No.

18             JUDGE JONES: And with regard to the

19 jurisdictions in which he is licensed to practice, do

20 they provide similar opportunities to Illinois?

21             MR. STURTEVANT: Yes.

22             JUDGE JONES: That Motion is granted.

23             MR. STURTEVANT: And then second, Your

24 Honor, as you probably saw, the company filed a post
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1 surrebuttal exhibit last week containing documentation

2 on rate case expense, it's come to my attention that

3 that exhibit had the improper exhibit on it.  It was

4 an exhibit marked as Exhibit 31.7 and it should have

5 been marked as Exhibit 31.11, .11.  So the company

6 would like to request the opportunity to re-file that

7 document with the correct exhibit number.  There

8 wouldn't be any other changes to what was contained in

9 the originally filed exhibit.

10             JUDGE JONES: Any response to that?

11             MR. O'BRIEN: Is the only change the

12 exhibit?

13             MR. STURTEVANT: Yes.

14             MR. O'BRIEN: Okay.

15             JUDGE JONES: Any other points of

16 clarification or objection?

17             Let the record show there are not.  That

18 Motion is granted.

19             So is that all of your preliminary matters?

20             MR. STURTEVANT: That's all of my

21 preliminary matters, yes, Your Honor.

22             JUDGE JONES: Does anyone else have any

23 preliminary matters to take up?

24             Okay.  As indicated on the witness sheet,
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1 there are some so-called no cross witnesses.  As

2 indicated the other day, the Affidavits to be filed

3 with no cross witnesses do not have to be filed as of

4 the time of the hearing if they are not ready to be

5 filed.  If that's the case then leave will be granted

6 to file those at a later time.

7             Then the related subject would be when the

8 testimony and exhibits with no minimum cross witnesses

9 are offered into the evidentiary record, as noted, the

10 Affidavits play into that to some degree.

11             Having said that, if we are at a point

12 where counsel for a party with no cross testimony

13 going into the record would like to move that into the

14 record sooner rather than later due to availability or

15 efficiency or other reasons, just let us know.

16 Interrupt us as need be and we'll deal with that.

17             It's sometimes the case that counsel are

18 present for portions of the hearings, but would like

19 to get the no cross testimony admitted in the record

20 so that they do not need to be present for longer

21 periods of time than are otherwise necessary.

22             So any questions about that?  Does anyone

23 have anything else then before we start with the

24 witnesses?
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1             Thank you.  It appears that the first

2 witness then for today is an Ameren Illinois Company

3 witness; is that correct?

4             MR. FITZHENRY:  Yes, it is, Your Honor.

5 Ms. Voiles I'll call to the stand.

6                    (Witness sworn in)

7             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Please proceed.

8                       EXAMINATION

9 BY MR. FITZHENRY:

10        Q.   Would you please state your name and

11 address for the record?

12        A.   Jacqueline, J-A-C-Q-U-E-L-I-N-E, Voiles,

13 V-O-I-L-E-S.  200 West Washington Street, Springfield,

14 Illinois 62701.

15        Q.   What is your business title?

16        A.   Senior Director for Regulatory Affairs.

17        Q.   Ms. Voiles, have you caused to be prepared

18 for submission into the record in this proceeding

19 certain testimonies and exhibits?

20        A.   Yes, I have.

21        Q.   I now direct your attention to what's been

22 previously marked for identification as Ameren Exhibit

23 28.0 titled Supplemental Rebuttal Testimony of

24 Jacqueline K. Voiles and ask if that is your
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1 supplemental rebuttal testimony to be submitted to

2 this docket?

3        A.   Yes, it is.

4        Q.   Do you have any corrections or changes or

5 modifications to this testimony?

6        A.   Yes, I have two corrections.  One on line

7 20 of my testimony, line 30 of my testimony, that

8 particular line I want to change.  Right now it says

9 staff EX.9.0, lines 19 through 91.  I want to change

10 19 to 25.

11        Q.   Do you have any other changes?

12        A.   The Appendix attached to my testimony

13 should be marked Appendix A, so I need to add the A to

14 that Appendix.

15        Q.   Does that complete the changes to your

16 testimony or exhibits?

17        A.   Yes, it does.

18        Q.   And if I were to ask you the questions set

19 forth in your Ameren Exhibit 28.0 with the changes

20 that you modified would you give the same answers as

21 set forth therein?

22        A.   Yes, I would.

23        Q.   And you also prepared, I take it, your

24 Appendix A?
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1        A.   That is correct.

2        Q.   And did you also prepare Ameren

3 Exhibit 28.1?

4        A.   That's correct.

5        Q.   Do you have any corrections to that

6 exhibit?

7        A.   No.

8        Q.   And was Ameren Exhibit 28.0, Appendix A and

9 Ameren Exhibit 28.1 prepared under your direction and

10 supervision?

11        A.   Yes, they were.

12        Q.   Now, Ms. Voiles, I direct your attention to

13 what's been previously marked as Ameren Exhibit 41.0

14 and ask if that is your surrebuttal testimony to be

15 submitted to this docket?

16        A.   Yes, it is.

17        Q.   And do you have any corrections or

18 modifications to this testimony?

19        A.   No.

20        Q.   And was this testimony prepared under your

21 direction or supervision?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions set

24 forth in this testimony would you give the same
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1 answers that are set forth therein?

2        A.   Yes, I would.

3             MR. FITZHENRY: Your Honor, at this time we

4 move for admission into the record Ameren Exhibits

5 28.0, 28.1 and 41.0 and tender Ms. Voiles for cross

6 examination.

7             JUDGE JONES: Any objections?

8             Let the record show no response.

9             So some corrections were made to 28.0; is

10 that correct?

11             MR. FITZHENRY: Correct.

12             JUDGE JONES: Were there any changes made to

13 28.1?

14             MR. FITZHENRY: No.

15             JUDGE JONES: And there was a correction

16 made to the Appendix?

17             MR. FITZHENRY: To the Appendix the letter A

18 was added and there were no corrections to Ameren

19 Exhibit 28.1.

20             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

21             I think probably the better course would be

22 to re-file an e-Docket 28.0 since it was corrected and

23 then also the Appendix just so the final version on

24 e-Docket, which will be the admitted version, which
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1 would be the up-to-date motion, as is the case with

2 some of the other exhibits that were changed.

3             MR. KENNEDY: Your Honor, if I could ask,

4 when we do that do you want us to mark it as Revised,

5 because that will impact the transcript, or we can

6 keep it the same.

7             JUDGE JONES: I think what has happened to

8 date in the earlier ones that were changed, I think

9 they were marked as Revised, were they not?

10             MR. KENNEDY: That's correct.

11             JUDGE JONES: So revised testimony of one

12 witness or another, so you can mark it in a similar

13 fashion and it will match up with the ones that were

14 filed previously and then that will also mean that

15 they will be completely correct versions on e-Docket

16 of what was actually admitted, and no paper copies or

17 anything would be necessary.  And Ameren Illinois

18 Company will be given two weeks to make those filings.

19             Subject to that, what will be admitted then

20 would be Revised Exhibit 28.0 marked in some manner

21 similar to that and Appendix A in that updated filing.

22 And the other exhibits as proffered by Ms. Voiles are

23 admitted and filed on e-Docket.  I think that will do

24 it.  Any questions about that?
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1             MR. FITZHENRY: No, Your Honor.

2             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  That will conclude

3 the questioning of Ms. Voiles?

4             MR. FITZHENRY: Yes.

5             JUDGE JONES: It appears that Commission

6 Staff may have some questions for Ms. Voiles; is that

7 the case?

8             MR. OLIVERO: That is correct, Your Honor.

9             JUDGE JONES: Are you ready to do that?

10             MR. OLIVERO: Yes, I am.  Thank you.

11                    CROSS EXAMINATION

12 BY MR. OLIVERO:

13        Q.   Good morning, Ms. Voiles.  My name is Jim

14 Olivero and on behalf of staff I'd like to ask you a

15 few questions regarding the AIC credit cards issued to

16 its employees.

17             I'm going to start out by asking you, you

18 were the primary company witness that provided

19 testimony in response to staff adjustments to disallow

20 certain credit card charges in the test year revenue

21 requirement as detailed in Ms. Pearce's Exhibit 13.0,

22 Schedules 13.06; correct?

23        A.   That's correct.

24        Q.   And according to page 1 of your
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1 supplemental rebuttal testimony, Ameren Exhibit 28,

2 and as just stated, I think, by you on the stand you

3 are employed by Ameren as the Senior Director of

4 Regulatory Affairs; correct?

5        A.   Correct.

6        Q.   And were you the individual at Ameren that

7 responded to staffs' data request in this proceeding

8 regarding the issue of credit card expenditures,

9 specifically, for example, BAT 2.0, the 4.0 series and

10 the 20 series?

11        A.   No, but I am familiar with those standard

12 test responses.

13        Q.   Those were by Mr. Greg Dobrinich; is that

14 correct?

15        A.   That's correct.

16             JUDGE JONES: Can we have a spelling on

17 that?

18             MR. OLIVERO: I think it's

19 D-O-B-R-I-N-I-C-H.

20 BY MR. OLIVERO:

21        Q.   And are you the person at Ameren

22 responsible for approving charges to the Ameren credit

23 cards issued to employees?

24        A.   I am for employees that report to me.



61

1        Q.   Okay, but you are not over all the ones

2 that are issued cards, you are just responsible for

3 the individuals that you supervise; correct?

4        A.   Yes.  And that's true for others who have

5 corporate credit cards.  It's up to the immediate

6 supervisor of that employee to approve those charges.

7        Q.   Okay.  And do you know approximately how

8 many employees of Ameren currently have company credit

9 cards that they are allowed to use?

10        A.   Yes, approximately 1,500.

11        Q.   And do you happen to know as a percentage

12 what is the number of employees with credit cards as

13 opposed to the number of employees at Ameren, is it

14 like 5 percent or is it like 10 percent of the

15 employees, if you know?

16        A.   Yeah, I don't know the answer to that.

17        Q.   Do you know approximately how many

18 employees Ameren has?

19             MR. SAGONE: We're having trouble hearing

20 you in Chicago.

21 BY MR. OLIVERO:

22        Q.   Do you know approximately how many

23 employees Ameren has?

24             MR. FITZHENRY: Can I just ask for a
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1 clarification?  When you say Ameren do you mean Ameren

2 Corporation as a whole or Ameren Illinois?

3             MR. OLIVERO: Well, let me back up then for

4 a second.

5 BY MR. OLIVERO:

6        Q.   As with regard to the credit cards, those

7 are for credit cards just for Ameren Illinois

8 employees, 1,500, or is that over the entire Ameren

9 Corporation?

10        A.   Yeah, the 1,500 was for Ameren Illinois.

11        Q.   Just Ameren Illinois?

12        A.   That is correct.

13        Q.   And then do you know how many employees

14 Ameren Illinois has?

15        A.   I don't have that information in front of

16 me, no.

17        Q.   Okay.  Of the approximately 1,500 employees

18 that have credit cards, do you know how many

19 supervisors or other management employees have

20 authorization to approve charges on those credit

21 cards?

22        A.   No, I don't.

23        Q.   Can I ask you how many people do you

24 supervise and I guess review their charge card
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1 statements?

2        A.   I have seven people in my group and not all

3 seven have corporate credit cards, so all but two have

4 corporate credit cards in my group.  And I have one

5 Managing Supervisor and so she would approve the

6 credit card charges for the employees reporting to

7 her.

8        Q.   Okay.  And is it safe to say that the

9 dollar limit for the various employees that have the

10 company credit cards varies widely?

11             MR. FITZHENRY: Well, I'm going to object.

12 Can you define when you state "varies widely"; are you

13 talking about a particular dollar range?

14             MR. OLIVERO: Can we go off the record for a

15 moment?

16             JUDGE JONES: Off the record.

17         (Brief discussion held off the record)

18             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record, there was

19 a short off the record discussion by counsel to

20 discuss the question relative to potential

21 confidentiality concerns and I believe counsel is

22 ready to ask a different question; is that right?

23             MR. OLIVERO: Well, I'm going to ask it, I

24 guess, with numbers.
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1 BY MR. OLIVERO:

2        Q.   Ms. Voiles, is it safe to say that the

3 dollar limit for the various employees who have these

4 company credit cards can vary from $1,000 to $60,000?

5        A.   Yeah, for the corporate credit card limits

6 there's a limit for a single transaction and then a

7 monthly limit, so you've got both at play with regard

8 to those limits.

9        Q.   Okay.  But I guess if I'm just looking at

10 the monthly limits, the 1,000 to 60,000 would be the

11 range; correct?

12        A.   I know that the amount will vary, but I

13 don't know for certain the upper limit that you

14 mentioned.

15        Q.   Okay.

16             MR. OLIVERO: Can we go off the record again

17 for just a moment, Your Honor?

18             JUDGE JONES: Off the record.

19         (Brief discussion held off the record)

20             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record.

21             MR. OLIVERO: Thank you, Your Honor.

22 BY MR. OLIVERO:

23        Q.   And just to clarify, Ms. Voiles, would you

24 agree that the monthly limit for those employees would
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1 be between 1,000 and $60,000 per month?

2        A.   Yes, that's correct.

3        Q.   And assuming the actual dollar amount for

4 the Ameren individuals with company credit cards will

5 vary from month to month, can you give us an idea of

6 approximately how much in the way of expense may be

7 charged to the company credit cards during any one

8 given month?

9        A.   Well, it depends on the monthly limits for

10 that particular corporate credit card that are

11 predefined when the credit card is issued.

12        Q.   Right, but I guess I'm asking if you were

13 to just consider, let's say, last month for the month

14 of July, do you see the records that indicate, you

15 know, with the 1,500 employees how much its charged

16 during a one particular month timeframe?

17        A.   I don't see that information.

18        Q.   Okay.  So you wouldn't know if it was like

19 almost $100,000 or $500,000 or $1,000,000, if it were

20 in that range?

21        A.   I don't get those reports.

22        Q.   And would you agree with me that Ms.

23 Pearce's adjustment for these credit card expenses

24 that the company is disputing was for a total of
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1 $12,000 for the entire year or about $1,000 per month?

2        A.   That is the total amount for the gas case,

3 yes.

4        Q.   Thank you.  Do you know which accounts in

5 the Uniform System of Accounts are used to record

6 expenditures made with company credit cards?

7        A.   No.  That may be a question for Mr. Getz.

8        Q.   Mr. Getz?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   I guess I'd like to go to your -- clarify

11 something in your rebuttal testimony, Ameren

12 Exhibit 28.0 at lines 271 through 273.  Are you there?

13        A.   Yes, I am.

14        Q.   You state in your question in line 37 of

15 her direct testimony Ms. Pearce quotes the

16 Commission's order, an ICC document number 12-0293

17 that found certain 2011 card charges were, quote,

18 "arguably excessive", close quote.  Did you mean Ms.

19 Pearce's supplemental direct testimony identified as

20 Staff Exhibit 9.0?

21        A.   Yes, I did.

22        Q.   Okay.  And then those subsequent questions

23 after that where you referenced, for example, on line

24 276 her first rationale and then later her second
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1 rationale and her third rationale, those were all in

2 reference to the supplemental direct testimony;

3 correct?

4        A.   That's correct.

5        Q.   Thank you.  And then I'd also like to call

6 your attention to your rebuttal testimony, Ameren

7 Exhibit 28 at lines 303 through 307.  And in that

8 question you put in lines 84 through 91 of her third

9 rationale for disallowance, Ms. Pearce broadly states

10 the charges even though they may be, quote, 'Usual

11 expenses in many for-profit businesses should be held

12 to, quote, "higher standards", close quote, when rate

13 payers are providing the funding', quote, "because the

14 customers required a service provided by the company

15 and have no alternative but to use AIC for delivery of

16 their", and then in brackets, "(electric)" close

17 brackets, 'service', close quote.  Do you agree?  Is

18 that what the question asked?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   Can you point to me -- and again, I guess I

21 should ask you, do you have a copy of Ms. Pearce's

22 testimony with you?

23        A.   Yes, I do.

24        Q.   Can you point me to where in Ms. Pearce's
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1 Supplemental Direct Testimony Staff Exhibit 9 where in

2 those lines she referenced a, quote, "higher

3 standard", close quote?

4        A.   I believe that in this particular Docket

5 13-0192 she does not use this specific verbiage.  She

6 does in her testimony for 13-0301.

7        Q.   Okay.  So just to clarify though, I guess

8 your reference to, quote, "higher standard" is not

9 correct in this docket though?

10        A.   Yeah, that's correct.

11        Q.   Thank you.  I guess now turning your

12 attention to your Exhibit 28.0 at page 3, lines 43

13 through 45, you provide I guess the following reason

14 for why AIC is opposing Ms. Pearce's adjustment in

15 both rate proceedings.  And I believe you say at lines

16 44, "yes, for the reasons stated.  The corporate card

17 charges proposed for disallowance by Ms. Pearce are

18 legitimate utility expenses which were prudently

19 incurred and reasonable in amount."  Is that line

20 correct?

21        A.   That's correct.

22        Q.   And I believe also, if you would refer to

23 your Exhibit Number 41, your surrebuttal testimony on

24 page 11, line 222 through 227, the question states,
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1 "Additionally, can you please restate why AIC

2 considers the credit card expenses to be recoverable

3 in gas delivery service rates?"  And you provided the

4 answer, "These disputed expenses were prudently

5 incurred and are legitimate utility business expenses

6 that provide benefits to AIC's rate payers.  All of

7 the disputed charges are reasonable in amount and

8 approved by a supervisor as a legitimate expense to

9 provide the safe and efficient delivery of service to

10 AIC customers."  Is that correct?

11        A.   That's correct.

12        Q.   And you reviewed Ms. Pearce's Staff Exhibit

13 13.0, Attachment B, pages 21 through 23, for purposes

14 of preparing your surrebuttal testimony, did you not?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Is it your position that AIC would not be

17 able to provide the safe and efficient delivery of

18 utility service that Ameren, AIC, customers if each

19 and every item listed on pages 21 through 23 of

20 Attachment B had not been purchased during 2012?

21        A.   It's my position that you have to look at

22 each corporate card transaction to look at the details

23 behind that transaction to understand the purpose for

24 those purchases.  And so in this particular case we're
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1 providing the supporting information necessary to make

2 the determination that these charges should be

3 recovered through the rates because they benefit our

4 customers.

5        Q.   So referring again to what was Staff

6 Exhibit 13, Attachment B, pages 21 through 23, is it

7 your position though that AIC would not be able to

8 provide safe and efficient delivery of utility service

9 to Ameren customers without, at item, say, line 6

10 described as 105 Ameren pens with Ameren Illinois

11 logos at the cost of $194.75?

12        A.   It's my position to look at each of the

13 expenditures that are at issue in Ms. Pearce's

14 testimony and look at the reasons for those purchases.

15 And so that's what I'm providing in my particular

16 testimony.

17        Q.   Okay.  And I guess your answer then to the

18 item on line 27 described as doughnuts at the cost of

19 $16.30, you again did an analysis to determine that

20 that met the requirements for you that you just

21 described for why they should be recoverable?

22        A.   I looked at the expense and why the expense

23 was incurred.  So we have, for instance, storm

24 preparedness planning sessions where there may be
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1 these types of foods that are provided and there may

2 be a reason for that.

3             The company employees don't just work eight

4 to five and instead there are a lot of meetings that

5 take place before the normal start time of a workday

6 or there may be times when these types of meetings are

7 happening over a lunch hour or at the end of a day and

8 so we you look at the purchase in the context of a

9 safety meeting or storm preparedness meeting, that's

10 what I'm trying to identify with regard to each of the

11 expenses.

12        Q.   And again, just to clarify, it's the

13 individual person who's making the charges that has

14 the credit card that determines for a particular day

15 that, let's say in this instance for the doughnuts,

16 that those are needed for that day?

17        A.   And they put on their expense account the

18 business justification.

19        Q.   And similarly with respect to item -- I'm

20 sorry, with respect to that same Exhibit ICC 13,

21 Attachment B, on line -- and I'm having trouble

22 reading this, but I think it's 83, that was an item

23 described as cupcakes for executive staff at the cost

24 of $54.57.  Was there justification provided for how
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1 that would help provide the safe and efficient

2 delivery of utility services to AIC customers?

3        A.   The detail that I have for that particular

4 transaction was in, it's described as another work

5 meeting and that's what that purchase was for.

6             MR. OLIVERO: Okay.  I think that's all the

7 questions we had, Your Honor.  Thank you, Ms. Voiles.

8             JUDGE JONES: Okay.  Thank you.  Any

9 redirect?

10             MR. FITZHENRY: Yes, there is, Your Honor.

11                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

12 BY MR. FITZHENRY:

13        Q.   Ms. Voiles, Mr. Olivero asked you some

14 questions about the amount of the disallowance at

15 issue between the company and staff.  And I believe

16 you referred to a total amount of about $12,000.  Do

17 you remember those questions and your answers?

18        A.   Yes, I do.

19        Q.   Does the amount of the disallowance at

20 issue in any way beg your opinion as to whether or not

21 the expenses at issue are recoverable or not?

22        A.   No, it doesn't.

23        Q.   And why is that?

24        A.   Because you have to look at each individual
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1 expense and look for the reason for that particular

2 charge and make a determination based on the support

3 for that particular charge.

4        Q.   And so I take it from your answer that your

5 opinion as to whether the amount of, say, $12,000 or

6 $120,000, if I understood your answer, it still comes

7 down to being able to either justify the expense or to

8 not be able to justify the expense as to whether it's

9 recoverable?

10        A.   That's correct.

11        Q.   And Mr. Olivero asked you a number of

12 questions where he talked about a particular expense

13 item and its connection to the provision of safe,

14 efficient and adequate delivery of service or a litany

15 of description along those lines.  Do you remember

16 those questions?

17        A.   Yes, I do.

18        Q.   And when you think about the provision of

19 efficient and adequate and safe and so forth delivery

20 of service, when that description is provided to you

21 do you mean to understand just simply the services

22 that might be needed to install a distribution

23 substation?

24        A.   Not necessarily, no.  I think that there
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1 are other things that go into providing safe and

2 reliable service.  And one of those is, for instance,

3 when there are storm response preparedness meetings

4 there are some other costs that are incurred when you

5 have those types of meetings.

6             So I think that you have to look at what's

7 needed from an employee perspective to be able to

8 provide that service.

9        Q.   And that might be something more than just

10 simply the lineman that is involved in putting up a

11 line or in some other way rebuilding a substation or

12 work of that nature?

13        A.   That's correct.

14        Q.   Now Mr. Olivero asked you a number of

15 questions about certain expense items.  For example,

16 he questioned you about certain food and beverage

17 expense items.  Do you generally recall those

18 questions?

19        A.   Yes, I do.

20        Q.   And is it the issue whether or not the

21 company should be able to recover a particular expense

22 because it's food and beverage or is the issue the

23 context in which that food and beverage is being

24 provided that calls you to question the staff
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1 disallowance?

2        A.   It's the context with regard to that

3 particular food and beverage.

4        Q.   And I think you answered this in some of

5 his questions about the context might mean a safety

6 meeting, for example?

7        A.   That's correct.  As a company, safety is

8 our number one priority which translates into customer

9 benefits in the end.

10        Q.   So your recommendations in your testimony

11 isn't so much about whether a particular food or

12 beverage item should be recoverable, but the context

13 in which that expense is being incurred?

14        A.   That's correct.

15        Q.   Thank you, Ms. Voiles.

16             MR. FITZHENRY: That's all I have.

17             JUDGE JONES: Any recross?

18             MR. OLIVERO: Yeah, just briefly, Your

19 Honor.

20                   RECROSS EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. OLIVERO:

22        Q.   Ms. Voiles, when you were asked by Mr.

23 Fitzhenry regarding some of the justification such as

24 the safety meetings and that.  Did you review each of



76

1 the items that were listed on Ms. Pearce's Attachment

2 B to Staff Exhibit 13 to determine the reason for the

3 meeting and why it was necessary in order to have

4 those food and beverages?

5        A.   Yes.  We looked at the business

6 justification that went along with that particular

7 corporate credit card transaction.  In some instances

8 we needed to ask some additional questions and we did

9 that.

10        Q.   To the people who actually incurred the

11 charges on her charge card you mean?

12        A.   That's correct.

13        Q.   And you did that for each of the items that

14 would have been affected by having meetings or

15 doughnuts or food afterwards, lunch?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

18             MR. OLIVERO: No further questions.

19             MR. FITZHENRY: Just a follow-up.

20                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. FITZHENRY:

22        Q.   In your response to Mr. Olivero, the

23 information that he's asking you about, is that

24 information that's provided in your Ameren
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1 Exhibit 28.1?

2        A.   Yes, it is.

3        Q.   Thank you.

4             MR. FITZHENRY: That's all I have.

5             JUDGE JONES: Any further questions?

6             MR. OLIVERO: No, Your Honor.

7             JUDGE JONES: That concludes the questions

8 for Ms. Voiles.  Thank you.

9        A.   Thank you.

10             JUDGE JONES: It appears the next witness is

11 also an Ameren company witness; is that correct?

12             MR. KENNEDY: Yes, sir.

13             JUDGE JONES: And who is that witness.

14             MR. KENNEDY: Michael Getz.

15                    (Witness sworn in)

16             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Please proceed.

17                       EXAMINATION

18 BY MR. KENNEDY:

19        Q.   Mr. Getz, can you please state your full

20 name for the record?

21        A.   Michael, M-I-C-H-A-E-L, J., Getz, G-E-T-Z.

22        Q.   And who is your employer, Mr. Getz?

23        A.   Ameren Illinois Company.

24        Q.   And what is your current position for
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1 Ameren Illinois?

2        A.   I'm a Controller for Ameren Illinois

3 Company.

4        Q.   And you prepared some testimony that's been

5 filed in this proceeding; is that correct?

6        A.   That's correct.

7        Q.   I'd like to draw your attention to what's

8 been previously marked as your Direct Testimony Ameren

9 Exhibit 3.0, the direct testimony of Michael J. Getz.

10 Do you have that in front of you?

11        A.   Yes, I do.

12        Q.   And is this testimony you prepared or what

13 was prepared under your supervision?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Do you have any corrections to that

16 testimony?

17        A.   No, I do not.

18        Q.   And that testimony is true and accurate to

19 the best of your knowledge?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

22 today you would give the same answers?

23        A.   Yes, I would.

24        Q.   And you also caused to be prepared in this
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1 Docket what's been previously marked Ameren

2 Exhibit 14.0, the supplemental direct testimony of

3 Michael J. Getz with attached Ameren Exhibit 14.1.  Do

4 you have that in front of you, Mr. Getz?

5        A.   Yes, I do.

6        Q.   And you prepared that testimony or it was

7 prepared under your direction; is that correct?

8        A.   That's correct.

9        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that

10 testimony?

11        A.   No, I do not.

12        Q.   And to the best of your knowledge the

13 answers in there are true and accurate; right?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   And if I were to ask you those questions

16 today you would give the same answers?

17        A.   Yes, I would.

18        Q.   You also caused to be prepared in this

19 Docket, Mr. Getz, what's been previously marked Ameren

20 Exhibit 18.0, the Rebuttal Testimony of Michael J.

21 Getz with Ameren Exhibits 18.1 through 18.5; is that

22 correct; sir?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that
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1 testimony?

2        A.   I have one correction.  On line 283 the

3 word "explanations" should be replaced by word

4 "expansions".

5        Q.   And besides that one correction the answers

6 are true and accurate to the best of your knowledge?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

9 today you'd give the same answers?

10        A.   Yes.

11             MR. KENNEDY: And what we'll do, Your Honor,

12 is re-file the Revised Exhibit 14 or 18.0 revised with

13 that correction in there.

14             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Leave is given

15 14 days for that purpose.

16 BY MR. KENNEDY:

17        Q.   And, Mr. Getz, you also prepared for this

18 Docket what's been previously marked as Ameren

19 Exhibit 32.0 Revised, the Revised Surrebuttal

20 Testimony of Michael J. Getz?

21        A.   That's correct.

22        Q.   And that testimony was prepared by you and

23 prepared under your direction?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   And to the best of your knowledge the

2 answers are true and accurate?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

5 today you would give the same answers; correct?

6        A.   Yes.

7

8             MR. KENNEDY: Your Honor, at this time I'd

9 like to move for the admission of the exhibits marked

10 Exhibit 3.0, Ameren Exhibit 14.0, 14.1, Ameren Exhibit

11 18.0 Revised with attached 18.1 to 18.5 and then

12 Ameren Exhibit 32.0 Revised.

13             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Any objections or

14 clarifications regarding that request?  And if there

15 are not, those exhibits offered as sponsored by Mr.

16 Getz are admitted into the record and filed on

17 e-Docket on the exhibit list, except for 18.0.  A

18 revised version of that will be filed containing the

19 one change outlined and it will be deemed admitted

20 into the record upon being filed.

21             Any questions about any of that?

22             Does that complete the questions?

23             MR. KENNEDY: That does, Your Honor.

24             JUDGE JONES: It appears that the people
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1 have some cross; is that correct?

2             MR. O'BRIEN: That's correct, Your Honor.

3                    CROSS EXAMINATION

4 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

5        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Getz.  My name is Tim

6 O'Brien and I work for the Attorney General's Office.

7 I believe we've met before?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   You won't be tested on that part.

10             Given some of the testimony that you filed

11 in this case you'll find it surprising that I want to

12 talk a bit about forecasts.

13             Would you agree generally that developing a

14 forecast carries with it an inherent level of

15 uncertainly?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   And as a general matter, would you also

18 agree that assumptions used in forecasting can change

19 somewhat as time passes and perhaps as more recent

20 operational information becomes available to

21 management?

22        A.   Yes, I'd agree with that.

23        Q.   Has the company prepared a more recent

24 forecast of expected capital spending and O&M expense
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1 in 2014 since filing the direct case?

2        A.   The process used in Ameren Illinois is we

3 look at the expected cost each month as maybe time

4 projects get deferred, things like that, so we

5 re-forecast basically on a monthly basis.

6        Q.   Okay.  So it's fair to say that you are

7 updating the 2014 forecast on a monthly basis?

8        A.   I would say more of the updates are related

9 to 2013 because we're looking, focusing more on the

10 current data, the current year.  There may be items

11 that slide from '13 to '14, but as I said, the focus

12 is primarily on 2013.

13        Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  You are familiar with

14 AIC?  And when I say AIC I'm referring specifically to

15 Ameren Illinois.

16        A.   Okay.

17        Q.   You are familiar with AIC Scheduling G5;

18 correct?

19        A.   Yes, I am.

20        Q.   G as in George.  Do you have a copy of that

21 with you today?

22        A.   Yes, I do.

23             MR. KENNEDY: Do you have a copy for me?

24             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes, I do.
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1             MR. KENNEDY: Thank you.

2 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

3        Q.   Mr. Getz, generally would you consider

4 Schedule G5 a comprehensive listing of the input

5 assumptions used to develop AIC's test year forecast?

6        A.   The G5 as defined includes the principle

7 assumption in the case.

8        Q.   And in terms of the assumptions referenced

9 at various places throughout G5 or even in certain

10 places in your testimony would you agree that the

11 exercise of judgment is necessary in determining

12 forecast assumptions?

13        A.   Yes.  We utilize the individuals, the

14 directors and the VPS's who are closest to the

15 operations to develop the forecast, as I state in my

16 testimony.

17        Q.   Would you also say that some judgment was

18 involved in preparing the standardized assumption

19 included in your Schedule G5?

20        A.   Could you repeat that question?

21        Q.   Certainly.  Would you also say that some

22 judgment was involved in preparing the standardized

23 assumptions included in your Schedule G5?

24             MR. KENNEDY: Are you asking about his
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1 judgment or management's judgment?  Is there someone's

2 judgment you are referring to?

3             MR. O'BRIEN: Management's judgment.

4        A.   Yes, management's judgment is involved in

5 the schedule.

6 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

7        Q.   Okay.  Now I would like to direct you to

8 page 6 of Schedule G5.  And I am not going to get into

9 a lot of specifics here whatsoever, I just want to ask

10 a couple of general questions.

11             At page 7 about a third of the way down or

12 so, labor assumptions are discussed; am I correct?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   And as a general principle would you agree

15 that actual employee levels can differ from assumed

16 staffing levels?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Would it be unusual for management to

19 periodically review the level of needed staffing and

20 change the targeted head counts?

21        A.   I would say that management strives to meet

22 the budget amounts, so we do review progress towards

23 the budget throughout the year and try to take actions

24 to stay in line with those budgeted amounts.
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1        Q.   Do you know if in 2013 to date the

2 company's actual pace of hiring has fallen behind what

3 its projected staffing count level was?

4        A.   On the gas only positions, which I assume

5 you are referring to?

6        Q.   Correct.

7        A.   Yes.  We're currently, we're approximately

8 40 positions behind what the budget is.  Mr. Colyer

9 addressed those positions in his testimony.

10        Q.   Okay.  Shifting away from labor for just a

11 second, also on, I believe it's page 7, there is an

12 assumption about the annual rate of inflation for

13 2014; am I correct?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Do you know with certainty what general

16 inflation levels will actually be experienced in 2014?

17        A.   Not with certainty, no.  This is based on

18 projections.  Commonly it's -- this was a review based

19 on the CPI's that we've revised in this case for the

20 inflation rate.

21        Q.   Essentially when it comes to projecting

22 inflation, we can put a dozen respected economists in

23 this room and would it be fair to say that we might

24 get a dozen different projections of what the
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1 inflation rate would be?

2             MR. KENNEDY: Objection.  Speculation.

3 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

4        Q.   If you know?

5             MR. KENNEDY: If he knows the opinions of a

6 dozen economists?

7             MR. O'BRIEN: I'll withdraw.

8             MR. KENNEDY: Thank you.

9 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

10        Q.   Mr. Getz, were any inflation rates other

11 than the 2 percent default rate used for discreet

12 forecast inputs?

13        A.   Yes.  As stated in the testimony a couple

14 lines above where the 2 percent is listed, under the

15 labor section we describe that a 2 and a half percent

16 increase is used for nonunion -- pardon me, for union

17 labor as based on the contract with those bargaining

18 union employees and then for nonunion wages the

19 forecast of 4 percent annually was used in this case.

20        Q.   Thank you.  Does Schedule G5 disclose items

21 such as assumed unit costs for motor fuel, postage,

22 insurance premiums or healthcare benefits?

23        A.   No.  Schedule G5 lists the principle

24 assumptions.
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1        Q.   For forecast items such as those that I

2 described generally would you agree that assumptions

3 regarding input prices could have a material impact on

4 forecasted test year expenses?

5        A.   I don't have that information.  I assume

6 price differences, as we've said earlier, if there are

7 forecasts we're assuming a 2 percent increase on those

8 non-labor items in our case.

9        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I think for the time

10 being we can set Schedule G5 aside.

11        A.   Okay.

12        Q.   And I just want to turn to your rebuttal

13 testimony for a moment here and I'm going to direct

14 you somewhere in the neighborhood of line 478 on

15 page 22.

16        A.   Okay.  I have that.

17        Q.   Right around line 478 you testified that

18 there are over 130 different personnel involved in the

19 preparation, review and approval of the budget and

20 that just the 2014 O&M and capital data comprises over

21 52,000 rows of information; did I adequately state

22 your testimony?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   I take it that your point here is that the
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1 test year forecast is pretty large and complicated?

2        A.   That, and also I wanted to point out the

3 number of people that are involved in the process,

4 that we're using people from the operational areas

5 that have expertise in these items.

6        Q.   Would it be possible in your view for an

7 individual not employed by the company to

8 independently review and confirm the accuracy of all

9 52,000 rows of those inputs?

10        A.   Not at a micro level, but at a macro level,

11 account type level, yes, but not at a 52,000 row

12 level.

13        Q.   Okay.  There's been a lot of testimony

14 between you and Mr. Brosch about inputs and work paper

15 documentation.  I don't want to beat a dead horse on

16 any of that, but I do just want to clarify one or two

17 items, if I could.

18             When you or one of your employees

19 responsible for inputting data is inputting the data

20 into the screens to develop the labor costs component

21 of the forecast for any particular resource management

22 center -- I'm sorry, strike that portion of the

23 question.  I'm going to lose you in about 30 seconds,

24 so I apologize.  I'm losing myself.
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1             When entering the input data into the

2 forecast system for a particular Resource Management

3 Center or RMC would one input staffing counts such as

4 the number of employees?

5        A.   Yes.  Within the system you enter the head

6 count.  And the system maintains the rate of those

7 employees so that individuals don't have to enter the

8 rate, it's already provided there by the budget system

9 based on what their actual was and the assumed

10 escalators.

11        Q.   And when you say "rate" are you referring

12 to the number of employees or the --

13        A.   I'm talking about the wage rate.

14        Q.   The wage rate?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

17             Would one also include assumptions about

18 productive versus nonproductive hours per employee?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   And would one also input assumed levels of

21 overtime hours?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Could one also pull up historical expense

24 data by resource type?
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1        A.   Not from the budget system, but from the

2 interim management forwarding system, yes, you could

3 see that information.

4        Q.   Does the forecast system and that internal

5 system you just described, do those systems easily

6 talk to each other?

7        A.   The budget would be the management

8 reporting system, yes, but the budget system doesn't

9 maintain the actuals you referred to comparing to

10 historical actuals.

11        Q.   So the person inputting would have to go

12 from screen to screen essentially?

13        A.   To a different system, yes.

14        Q.   Okay.  Could one inputting the data also

15 exclude funding for activities that may no longer be

16 required?

17        A.   As they're entering their budget?

18        Q.   Correct.

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   If there was any uncertainty about the

21 costs for a given project or perhaps the costs to hire

22 a contractor, does the system allow you to input a

23 range of amounts?

24        A.   The system allows you to enter the value
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1 for labor, as I said.  There's a wage rate so you

2 enter the employees and the hours to those wage rates.

3 For non-labor items you enter the value, the dollar

4 value.

5        Q.   Okay.  When you are entering the wage rates

6 does the system give you an option to enter a range or

7 does it have to be a specific number?

8        A.   I don't enter the wage rates.  Those are

9 already provided by the budget personnel in the

10 corporate office, so I don't have the ability to

11 modify the wage rates.

12        Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  And I believe line 485

13 of your testimony, your rebuttal testimony, you

14 indicate that you did a macro review of the forecast;

15 is that correct?

16        A.   Yes.  And I mentioned AIC leadership also

17 performed a review.

18        Q.   Correct.  We'll get to them in just a

19 second.

20        A.   Okay.

21        Q.   Did you in this macro review reject or

22 recommend a substantial revision to any of the

23 individual forecast line items?

24             MR. KENNEDY: Can I ask what you mean by
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1 substantial revision?

2             MR. O'BRIEN: Well, we'll start by striking

3 the word "substantial".

4 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

5        Q.   Mr. Getz, did you reject or recommend any

6 revision to any of the individual forecast line items?

7        A.   Not to the dollar amount, but to the FERC

8 account that was assigned to some of the individual

9 charges, yes.

10        Q.   Do you recall offhand what specific changes

11 you required?  You mentioned the FERC accounts?

12        A.   That was the primary thing that comes to my

13 mind is reviewing to make sure that the FERC account

14 assigned was appropriate.

15             COURT REPORTER:  FERC account?

16             MR. O'BRIEN: F-E-R-C.

17 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

18        Q.   I'm presuming that's the FERC you were

19 referring to?

20        A.   That's correct.

21        Q.   As you just mentioned, Mr. Getz, you also

22 indicated that AIC management and the AIC board also

23 reviewed and approved the forecasted financial

24 statements?
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1        A.   That's correct.

2        Q.   Do you know if those two additional layers

3 of review caused any additional revisions to what was

4 initially presented?

5             MR. KENNEDY: Are you asking about revisions

6 to dollar amounts for particular items?

7             MR. O'BRIEN: Correct.

8        A.   I don't recall something specific.

9 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

10        Q.   Okay.  When either yourself or members of

11 the AIC leadership or board are reviewing the forecast

12 do any of you have the option to, and because I'm not

13 an accountant or a finance wizard I'm going to use the

14 term "look inside" the forecast system to review the

15 inputs; do you have that option to look inside?

16             MR. KENNEDY: I'd like counsel to define

17 "look inside" for the witness, please.

18 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

19        Q.   Can you get data as to the assumptions used

20 in the input?  If one of your employees enters in data

21 can you later, for example, click on that cell and get

22 information about the assumptions used to input that

23 data?

24        A.   The assumptions are not contained within
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1 the system.  The dollar amounts are contained within

2 it, but they are just dollars within the system.

3        Q.   And does that come from the budgeting

4 system?

5        A.   That's correct, yes.

6        Q.   On page 23 of your rebuttal testimony you

7 mentioned an accounting firm retained by the company

8 to conduct the review that was done; is that correct?

9        A.   That's correct.

10        Q.   Are you aware of any instances where the

11 accounting firm came back to you or AIC management or

12 the AIC board and suggested changes to any of the

13 lines of forecast input data?

14        A.   One line item we're aware of was related to

15 bonus depreciation.  I didn't specifically coordinate

16 with the auditors --

17             COURT REPORTER:  Sir, can you please keep

18 your voice up?

19        A.   I'm sorry.

20             COURT REPORTER:  "I didn't specifically

21 coordinate with the auditors --"

22        A.   -- with the auditors.  That was done by Mr.

23 Stafford in the regulatory accounting group.

24 BY MR. O'BRIEN:
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1        Q.   Okay.  But you are aware of that one change

2 to the bonus depreciation; correct?

3        A.   That's correct.

4        Q.   Do you know if that change was ultimately

5 made?

6        A.   I don't recall on that if it was made or

7 not.

8        Q.   And it is correct that no witnesses from

9 the accounting firm submitted testimony in this

10 hearing; correct?

11        A.   Correct.

12        Q.   Earlier we talked a bit about the 130 or

13 more persons who are inputting data into the forecast

14 system.  Would it be burdensome for each of those

15 employees to somehow document their understanding of

16 their basis for inputting the data at the time it's

17 entered?

18        A.   First of all, I want to clarify that 130

19 people aren't entering data in the system.  They are

20 involved in the process, but more like 11 to 15

21 individuals, the BCS's, business correspondence

22 specialists, or the financial specialists who are

23 actually entering the data and working with those

24 personnel.
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1             And then in terms of documentation, as I

2 said, we have done a cost benefit analysis to

3 determine what would be the additional steps in what

4 we are currently doing.

5        Q.   And was it that cost benefit analysis that

6 led to -- I think on line 466 or thereabouts of your

7 rebuttal testimony you refer to a leaner, more cost

8 effective approach in terms of budgeting?

9        A.   Yes.  As I stated, there's a cost to

10 develop, accumulate and store the forecast work papers

11 in every input data.

12        Q.   Under what you've labeled this leaner

13 approach, did you expect that the absence of

14 producible forecast work papers could lead to the

15 voluminous discovery that resulted in this case?

16             MR. KENNEDY: Objection.  I think there is

17 an assumption in that question that there were not

18 papers produced.

19             MR. O'BRIEN: I'll ask a foundation question

20 if that would make you happy.

21             MR. KENNEDY: Thank you.

22             MR. O'BRIEN:  I'll just strike the last

23 question, Your Honor.

24 BY MR. O'BRIEN:



98

1        Q.   Mr. Getz, in your opinion what is the

2 difference between forecast inputs and forecast

3 outputs?

4        A.   Forecast inputs would be the amounts that

5 are entered into the budget system which we've

6 documented and we were able to pull out of that budget

7 system in various stated requests and discovery.  And

8 forecast outputs I guess would be the overall results.

9        Q.   Fair enough.  I'm going to switch to your

10 surrebuttal testimony for a moment, specifically

11 page 4.  I'm going to try to get you a specific line

12 here.

13             MR. O'BRIEN: I'll strike that.  We'll find

14 the exact pinpoint and we'll come back to that.

15 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

16        Q.   Mr. Getz, generally speaking is it true

17 that one way to test forecast results would be to

18 compare the overall amounts being forecasted by the

19 utility to comparable historical expense amounts?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   And the person testing the results could

22 then ask for an explanation of any variances; correct?

23        A.   Correct.  And on the attachment to AG 9.03

24 we provided the historical actuals for 2011 and 2012,
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1 as well as the forecasted amount by account and by

2 resource type to provide such an analysis.

3        Q.   And in each instance in the exhibit you

4 just referenced did the company provide a variance

5 explanation?

6             MR. KENNEDY: I think he is referring to AG

7 9.03.  It wasn't an exhibit.

8             MR. O'BRIEN: Oh, it wasn't an exhibit?

9             MR. KENNEDY: No, it was just an attachment

10 with circled and forecasted amounts.

11        A.   I have a copy of AG 9.03 in front of me.

12             MR. KENNEDY: I believe AG 9.03 is an

13 exhibit.  The cover page is an exhibit to Mr. Getz'

14 testimony.  I do not know if the attachment though is

15 included and I can't say what Mr. Brosch put in his

16 record.

17             COURT REPORTER:  Did you want that on the

18 record?  I can't hear you.

19             MR. KENNEDY:  He references it on 95 on the

20 surrebuttal.

21             MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you, Mr. Kennedy.

22 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

23        Q.   We're going to shift gears just a little

24 bit here.  I'd like to direct you to page 8 of your
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1 surrebuttal.  On page 8 you provide a list of four

2 bullet point items that AIC is willing to commit to in

3 future rate cases to support its forecast?

4        A.   That's correct.

5        Q.   And I would just like to briefly discuss

6 some of these items with you.  Do any of the four

7 bullet points listed on this page 8 represent a

8 commitment by the company to retain copies of forecast

9 calculations?

10             MR. KENNEDY: Objection.  I think that's

11 vague as to what you mean by "retain copies of

12 forecast calculations".  Are you asking him if he

13 retained pieces of paper that he would possibly use?

14             MR. O'BRIEN: Well, perhaps justification

15 for the input.

16        A.   In the last two bullet points I listed

17 specifically what the company plans to provide which

18 would be information on head count and information on

19 actual O&M with explanation or justification where the

20 cost exceeds the escalator.

21        Q.   And would it be your or AIC's plan to have

22 such information available for review by commission

23 staff and intervenors in future rate cases?

24        A.   What I have said in my testimony is that we
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1 would produce this information and work papers at the

2 time we file a direct case.

3             MR. O'BRIEN: Your Honor, if I could just

4 have a quick moment.

5             I have no further questions.

6             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Is there redirect?

7             MR. KENNEDY: Your Honor, may I have a

8 couple of minutes to discuss with my witness, if you

9 don't mind?

10             JUDGE JONES: Any objection to that?

11             MR. O'BRIEN: No objection.

12             JUDGE JONES: What is your time estimate for

13 that?

14             MR. KENNEDY: Five minutes.  I'll just walk

15 outside real quick and talk to him.

16             JUDGE JONES: Let's take a five-minute

17 break.

18             (A short break was then taken)

19             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record.

20                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. KENNEDY:

22        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Getz.

23        A.   Good morning.

24        Q.   I have a couple of questions on redirect
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1 based on the cross examination of AG counsel.

2             You were asked a couple questions about the

3 accounting firm that AIC employed through unit

4 forecast.  Do you remember those questions?

5        A.   Yes, I do.

6        Q.   And I believe you indicated that you were

7 not the principal person at AIC who's coordinating

8 that?

9        A.   That's correct.

10        Q.   And who was that person?

11        A.   Mr. Stafford from the regulatory accounting

12 group.

13        Q.   And I believe the counsel for AG asked you

14 questions about the items that the accounting firm may

15 have reviewed during its review of the forecast; is

16 that correct?  Do you remember those questions?

17        A.   Yes, I do.

18        Q.   If someone wanted to know what the

19 accounting firm reviewed during its review of the

20 forecast, what would be your opinion where should that

21 person go to see that information?

22        A.   In my opinion they would go to the

23 accounting firm of the auditors and review their work

24 papers to see what was part of their --
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1             COURT REPORTER:  Please keep your voice up.

2 BY MR. KENNEDY:

3        Q.   And to your knowledge was that opportunity

4 provided to the AG expert in this case?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   You were asked some questions about the

7 bullet in your surrebuttal testimony.  I would like to

8 refer you to those pages which is page 8.  On lines

9 165 and 166 do you see those two bullets there, Mr.

10 Getz?

11        A.   Yes, I do.

12        Q.   They are marked with an asterisk.  What

13 does the asterisk mean?

14        A.   The asterisk indicates that AIC provided

15 similar information in the direct filing or in

16 discovery responses.

17        Q.   And in the last two bullets on lines 174 to

18 180 I'd like to first ask you a question about the

19 fourth bullet.  It refers to gas only head count

20 staffing forecasting justifications of any new

21 employee positions to be filled.  Do you see that

22 bullet?

23        A.   Yes, I do.

24        Q.   Are you saying -- is your testimony saying



104

1 that that information was not provided in this case?

2        A.   No.  Mr. Colyer in his testimony addresses

3 the positions for the gas only head count and the plan

4 to fill those positions.

5        Q.   And was that information that was provided

6 to the Attorney General to the best of your knowledge

7 during the discovery process?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   And does your testimony just deal with the

10 timing of when that data would be presented for review

11 in subsequent cases?

12        A.   That's correct.  In my testimony I'm saying

13 that we'll provide this, the work papers and the

14 direct filing.  In the current case this information

15 was provided in several data requests, AG 1.03, 5.03,

16 12.03.  So similar information was provided in those

17 DR responses.

18        Q.   And it's your expectation that what you are

19 recommending is that the company compile that

20 information in connection with the filings so there's

21 no overstaffing and it's --

22        A.   Right.  It's really a timing issue in my

23 mind to provide this information along with the direct

24 case as opposed to throughout the discovery process.
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1        Q.   And with respect to the non-labor items

2 that are still in dispute between the company and the

3 Attorney General's Office is what you are saying here

4 similarly that the company is going to make an effort

5 to make those materials available for review sooner in

6 the process?

7        A.   That's right.  Again, it's the timing

8 issue.  I think the company has provided documentation

9 throughout the discovery and testimony and now we are

10 proposing to do that earlier in future cases.

11        Q.   You were asked some questions by AG's

12 counsel about inputs and outputs and assumptions for

13 the forecast.  It's correct that what you said were

14 forecast inputs, you considered that to be the cost

15 input that was placed into the company's system?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   And he asked you whether or not the system

18 contained the assumptions behind those inputs; is that

19 correct?  Do you remember that question?

20        A.   Yes, I do.

21        Q.   And the system does contain the

22 assumptions?

23        A.   The system doesn't contain the assumption.

24 Like I said, we utilize personnel from the operations
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1 area and the BCS's.  In the budgeting process those

2 people are the most knowledgeable about the operation,

3 so throughout the case we provided information about

4 those costs and the documentation.  And Mr. Colyer

5 addressed that in his testimony and he provided

6 several examples through the responses.

7        Q.   So if someone wanted to know the assumption

8 behind a cost input placed into the budgeting system

9 that person would direct that question to the BCS, the

10 budget person, who would then direct to the person

11 responsible for that input?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   And is it your belief that that happened

14 with the not for dispute items in this case?

15        A.   That's correct.

16        Q.   You were asked some questions about

17 re-forecasting for 2014.  Do you remember those

18 questions?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   To your knowledge has the company changed

21 its gas only staffing forecast for 2014?

22        A.   It has not.

23        Q.   So the current, as we sit here today, gas

24 only forecast for actual employees is the same as what
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1 the company was using in its test year case?

2        A.   That's correct.

3        Q.   You were asked the question initially that

4 I did not want to object to out of the gate about

5 whether forecasts in general were inherently

6 uncertain. Do you remember that question?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Do you think based on your review of the

9 testimony provided in this case for the disputed labor

10 and non-labor items that the company's forecasted cost

11 for those items is, quote, "inherently uncertain"?

12        A.   No.  I believe there's been sufficient

13 documentation provided by Mr. Colyer in his testimony

14 and data request responses to support those costs that

15 are not -- to support those costs.

16        Q.   And if someone wanted to know about, you

17 know, a particular cost item that is at dispute in the

18 labor and non-labor charges, as you referenced, who

19 would those questions -- who would the person be to

20 have those questions posed?

21        A.   Mr. Colyer.

22        Q.   And what is Mr. Colyer's position in the

23 company?

24        A.   He is Senior Director of Advanced
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1 Operations, I believe is his title.

2        Q.   I have one other question.  The G5, do you

3 still have a copy of that in front of you from

4 earlier?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   I believe that counsel for the AG may have

7 used the word "comprehensive", you may have used the

8 word "principle" when talking about the assumptions in

9 this document.  Can you please explain what you think

10 the G5 is intended to disclose?

11        A.   Hold on one second.  The Administrative

12 Code says that G5 shall include the principle

13 assumption due to the projected information to form

14 the basis of the test year as selected by the utility.

15 So that's what we did in the G5 scheduling, put the

16 principle assumption.  And included in those were the

17 labor for union and nonunion employees, the escalation

18 rates that were used and then we said unless

19 specifically determined otherwise this process assumes

20 a default of 2 percent annual rate of inflammation for

21 non-labor O&M costs.

22        Q.   So in your opinion not every exception to

23 the assumption or not every assumption out there is

24 recorded in the G5 or intended to be recorded in the
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1 G5?

2        A.   That's correct.

3        Q.   And if somebody wanted to know about one of

4 those exceptions, you know, in your opinion what kind

5 of information would they look at to examine that?

6        A.   In my opinion I think the response to AG

7 9.03 where we listed the individual FERC accounts and

8 compared to historical, so we had 2013 and 2014

9 forecast data as well as the 2011 and 2012 actual

10 data, so you could see at an account level where there

11 were areas that grew by more than 2 percent if you

12 wanted to and it was by resource type as well, so for

13 the questions into those, regardless of the increases,

14 can be asked and identified through that data request.

15        Q.   So if you were the outside expert in this

16 proceeding and you want to do, quote, "an independent

17 audit" of the forecasts and you had that document what

18 would you do with it?

19        A.   I'd look to see where there were some

20 significant variances from the 2012 actuals to 2014

21 forecast and request explanations with regard to those

22 increases, particularly in the data request similar to

23 staff which we actually did in this case in EMG 3101.

24
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1             MR. KENNEDY: That's all the questions I

2 have, Your Honor.

3             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Recross?

4             MR. O'BRIEN: Just one moment, Your Honor.

5             I have no recross, Your Honor.

6             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  That concludes the

7 questions for Mr. Getz.  Thank you, sir.

8             MR. KENNEDY: I think that counsel were

9 conferring and wondering what Your Honor wants the

10 schedule to be for the remainder of the morning.

11             JUDGE JONES: Off the record.

12         (Brief discussion held off the record)

13             JUDGE JONES: We hereby break for lunch

14 until 1 p.m.

15             (A lunch break was then taken)

16             JUDGE JONES: We're back on the record.  Can

17 you hear us okay in Chicago?

18             MS. ERICSON:  Yes, we can.  Thank you, Your

19 Honor.

20             JUDGE JONES: All right.  I think we're

21 ready for our next witness and that is another Ameren

22 Illinois Company witness; is that correct?

23             MR. KENNEDY:  That's correct.  We're

24 presenting Mr. Thomas Tucker Kennedy who is on the
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1 stand right now.

2                    (Witness sworn in)

3             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Please proceed.

4                       EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. KENNEDY:

6        Q.   Mr. Kennedy, would you please state your

7 full name for the record?

8        A.   MY full name is Thomas B. Kennedy, III.  My

9 nickname is Tucker.  I often go by Tucker.

10        Q.   And who is your employer, Mr. Kennedy?

11        A.   Ameren Illinois.

12        Q.   What is your current position?

13        A.   I am the Director of Community and Public

14 Relations for the company.

15        Q.   And that's also known as CPR?

16        A.   Team CPR.

17        Q.   I just have a couple of questions for you

18 this morning to introduce some exhibits that have been

19 previously identified by you in testimony.  Do you

20 have in front of you a copy of Ameren Exhibit 6.0

21 which is the Direct Testimony of Thomas B. Kennedy,

22 III?

23        A.   Yes, I do.

24        Q.   And is this testimony that you prepared or
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1 was prepared under your direction?

2        A.   Yes, it was.

3        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that

4 testimony this morning?

5        A.   No, I do not.

6        Q.   To the best of your knowledge is the

7 information contained in that exhibit true and

8 accurate?

9        A.   Yes, it is.

10        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

11 today that were posed in your testimony on paper would

12 you give the same responses?

13        A.   Yes, I would.

14        Q.   I would also like to direct your attention

15 to what's previously been marked for identification as

16 Ameren Exhibit 21.0 Revised, Revised Rebuttal

17 Testimony of Thomas B Kennedy, III, with Ameren

18 Exhibits 21.1 through 21.9 attached.  Do you have a

19 copy of that in front of you?

20        A.   Yes, I do.

21        Q.   And that testimony was prepared by you or

22 prepared under your direction?

23        A.   Yes, it was.

24        Q.   And is the information contained in that
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1 rebuttal testimony true and accurate to the best of

2 your knowledge?

3        A.   Yes, it is.

4        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

5 today that are on the paper in front of you would you

6 give the same responses?

7        A.   Yes, I would.

8        Q.   I would also like to direct your attention

9 to what's been previously marked for identification as

10 Ameren Exhibit 29.0 Revised which is titled the

11 Revised Supplemental Rebuttal Testimony of Thomas B.

12 Kennedy, III.  Do you have a copy of that in front of

13 you?

14        A.   Yes, I do.

15        Q.   And is that testimony that you prepared or

16 was prepared under your supervision?

17        A.   Yes, it was.

18        Q.   Is the information contained therein true

19 and accurate to the best of your knowledge?

20        A.   Yes, it is.

21        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that

22 testimony?

23        A.   No, I do not.

24        Q.   And if I would ask you the same questions
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1 today that are asked on the paper would you give the

2 same responses?

3        A.   Yes, I would.

4        Q.   And lastly I'd like to direct your

5 attention to what's been previously marked for

6 identification as Ameren Exhibit 35.0 with attached

7 Ameren Exhibit 35.1 which is the Surrebuttal Testimony

8 of Thomas B. Kennedy, III.  Do you have a copy of that

9 in front of you?

10        A.   Yes, I do.

11        Q.   Is that testimony that you prepared or was

12 prepared under your direction?

13        A.   Yes, it was.

14        Q.   And is that information true and accurate

15 to the best of your knowledge?

16        A.   Yes, it is.

17        Q.   And do you have any corrections today to

18 that testimony?

19        A.   No, I do not.

20        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

21 that are posed to you in that surrebuttal testimony

22 would you give the same responses?

23        A.   Yes, I would.

24             MR. KENNEDY: Mr. Honor, I would like to
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1 offer Mr. Kennedy for cross examination and move for

2 admitting into evidence what's been previously marked

3 as Ameren Exhibit 6.0, Ameren Exhibit 21.0 Revised

4 with attachments 21.1 through 21.9, Ameren

5 Exhibit 29.0 Revised, Ameren Exhibit 35.0 with

6 attachment and Ameren Exhibit 35.1.  There were no

7 corrections to any of those exhibits on the stand.

8             JUDGE JONES:  One moment.

9             Are there objections with respect to the

10 Motion to admit those exhibits?

11             Let the record show there are not.

12             Those exhibits are admitted and filed on

13 e-Docket and include Ameren Exhibit 6.0 filed on

14 January 25th, 2013; 21.0 Revised, filed August 5,

15 2013; Ameren Exhibits 21.1 through 21.9 inclusive,

16 filed July 10, 2013; and 9.0 Revised filed August 22,

17 2013; 35.0 filed August 15, 2013; 35.1 filed

18 August 15th, 2013.  Those are admitted.

19             Does the commission staff, counsel for

20 commission staff still have some cross questions for

21 the witness?

22             MR. OLIVERO: Yes, we have very few, Your

23 Honor, and then we're going to have an exhibit that we

24 are going to move to admit.
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1

2                    CROSS EXAMINATION

3 BY MR. OLIVERO:

4        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Kennedy.

5        A.   Good afternoon.

6        Q.   My name is Jim Olivero and I represent the

7 staff witnesses at the Illinois Commerce Commission.

8 I don't have very many questions for you.  I don't

9 think we are going to take the full 15 minutes.

10             (ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 1, BAP 26.01 &

11 26.02 w/attachments, was then identified.)

12             MR. OLIVERO: But before we do that, by

13 agreement of the parties, Staff and Ameren had agreed

14 to the admission of what I have designated as ICC

15 Cross Exhibit Number 1, the data request responses to

16 BAP 26.01 and 26.02.  And I believe there is an

17 attachment to 26.02, a two-page attachment.

18             JUDGE JONES: What were the initials?

19             MR. OLIVERO: BAP 26.01 and 2.

20             JUDGE JONES: Are you going to file this on

21 e-Docket too if it gets admitted?

22             MR. OLIVERO: We can.  I didn't know if the

23 court reporter would do that or not.

24             MR. KENNEDY: The company doesn't have any
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1 objection to admitting the exhibits.  We'll note that

2 BAP 26.02 was actually sponsored by Mr. Stafford who

3 is also a witness in this case, but for convenience

4 and simplicity we agree to just put both of them into

5 the record at this time.

6             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Is that okay with

7 submit filing that on e-Docket?

8             MR. OLIVERO: Sure.

9             JUDGE JONES: That will make it perhaps a

10 little more accessible to all the other parties,

11 especially those who are not in this room.

12             MR. OLIVERO: Certainly, Your Honor.

13             JUDGE JONES: Any other comments with

14 respect to ICC Cross Exhibit Number 1?

15             MR. KENNEDY: No.  We have no objection to

16 it being admitted.

17             JUDGE JONES: Please note that ICC Staff

18 Cross Exhibit Number 1 will be admitted into the

19 evidentiary record subject to the copy of that being

20 filed on e-Docket in 14 days of today's date.

21 BY MR. OLIVERO:

22        Q.   Mr. Kennedy, referring to your Revised

23 Rebuttal Testimony Ameren Exhibit 21.0 R, page 24, you

24 indicate that it is not reasonable to use AIC's 2012
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1 expenses as the baseline for AIC's 2014 forecasted

2 advertising expense; is that correct?

3             MR. KENNEDY: Can you give him a chance to

4 find it and then maybe repeat it?

5             MR. OLIVERO: Sure, Chris.

6        A.   What pages?

7 BY MR. OLIVERO:

8        Q.   Page 24.

9             MR. KENNEDY: Of Exhibit 21?

10             MR. OLIVERO: 21, yes.

11        A.   I don't know that I have that.

12             MR. KENNEDY: Your rebuttal testimony?

13        A.   Revised rebuttal?  My pages stop at 20 of

14 20.

15             MR. KENNEDY: Can we go off the record for a

16 second?

17             JUDGE JONES: Off the record.

18          (Brief discussion held off the record)

19        A.   All right, I've got it.

20 BY MR. OLIVERO:

21        Q.   Are you with me?

22        A.   Uh-huh.

23             JUDGE JONES: Back on record.

24 BY MR. OLIVERO:
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1        Q.   Now referring to that page of your revised

2 rebuttal testimony, you indicate that it is not

3 reasonable to use AIC's 2012 expenses as the baseline

4 for AIC's 2014 forecasted advertising expense; is that

5 correct?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   All right.  Now referring to page 25 of

8 that same testimony, you indicated it's also not

9 reasonable to use the average actual advertising

10 expenses during the four-year period of 2009 through

11 2012 as the baseline for AIC's 2014 forecasted

12 advertising expense; correct?

13        A.   Yes.  It is our position that --

14             MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, I hate to

15 interrupt.  At this point I guess I was just asking

16 for a yes or no question so I would just move to

17 strike anything after the yes answer.

18             MR. KENNEDY: I think he was just giving his

19 explanation of why he thought it was unreasonable.

20             MR. OLIVERO: Well, the question was just

21 did he say that in his testimony.

22             JUDGE JONES: Can I have the question read

23 back, Ms. Reporter?  Thank you.

24             (Question read back by reporter)
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1             JUDGE JONES: Maybe it comes down to the

2 word testified versus indicated.  I don't know if you

3 meant that to mean the synonym, but that may be part

4 of the problem in terms of what the witness heard for

5 providing an explanation beyond a simple yes or no.

6 If you want to rephrase the question about testify or

7 state we'll go from there.

8             MR. OLIVERO: One moment.

9 BY MR. OLIVERO:

10        Q.   Okay.  Mr. Kennedy, in the same Exhibit

11 Number 21.0 R on page 25 you seem to at least in your

12 questions and answers on those pages indicate that the

13 average four-year actual advertising expenses during

14 the period of 2009 through 2012 as the baseline for

15 AIC's 2014 forecasted advertising expenses would not

16 be reasonable; is that correct?

17        A.   Yes, for the reasons I stated in the

18 testimony.

19        Q.   Okay.  And can you tell me what is AIC's

20 2014 forecasted advertising expense based upon?

21        A.   It is, as I testified, our forecasted

22 advertising expense is based on the projected

23 advertising that we will execute to reach and educate

24 806,000 gas customers throughout our service
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1 territory.

2        Q.   Do you know if AIC spent its entire

3 advertising budget in the year 2012?

4        A.   What was budgeted or what we --

5        Q.   What was budgeted.

6        A.   No, I do not.

7        Q.   Would you have been in charge of the

8 advertising budget for the year 2012?

9        A.   I came to the company in the middle of 2012

10 and joined in April of that year.

11        Q.   I may come back to that, but just for some

12 clarification I would refer you to your surrebuttal

13 testimony Ameren Exhibit 35.0, page 14.

14        A.   Okay.

15        Q.   And actually, let me back up for one

16 moment.  You reviewed Ms. Bonnie Pearce's revised

17 direct testimony, her supplemental direct testimony

18 and her rebuttal testimony, did you not?

19        A.   Yes, sir.

20        Q.   Now going back to your Ameren Exhibit 35 on

21 page 14, lines 298 and 299, you had provided -- there

22 were -- actually the question at 296.  At line 204 Ms.

23 Pearce states that the advertising budget was subject

24 to AIC's discretion.  "Do you understand what she
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1 means by that?"  And you answered, "No, but if Ms.

2 Pearce is suggesting that AIC could stop communicating

3 with customers altogether concerning its gas delivery

4 service I dispute that assertion."

5             Can you tell me where you found that

6 statement or suggestion by Ms. Pearce that AIC should

7 stop communicating with its gas customers?

8             MR. KENNEDY: I'm going to object that's

9 argumentative.  I think he states in the answer that

10 he's not clear what she's stating when she talks about

11 discretion and he's restating her answer.

12             MR. OLIVERO: Okay, but the fact is he is

13 disputing an assertion that he's saying Ms. Pearce

14 made without identifying where Ms. Pearce made any

15 comments that would lead him to that assertion.

16             MR. KENNEDY: And it's clear in the question

17 he is pointing to a line before in her testimony where

18 she states that the advertising budget is subject to

19 discretion.  And in the answer it's clear that he

20 doesn't quite understand what she means, but if she's

21 suggesting this then he disputes it.  So I don't

22 think -- I think it's -- I think the answer itself

23 indicates that Ms. Pearce does not make that specific

24 assertion specifically in her testimony.



123

1             JUDGE JONES: Can I have the question read

2 back?

3             (Question read back by reporter)

4             JUDGE JONES:  The question contains an

5 assumption that the witness did make that suggestion.

6 That makes the question somewhat unanswerable without

7 really getting to the assumption.

8             If you want to ask about the assumption you

9 can do that, but I'm not going to require the witness

10 -- or if you can provide a citation to the record as

11 to where the assumption in that question is located

12 then we can proceed with the question too, but by

13 throwing the "that" or whatever you used to create

14 that assumption in the question that presents a little

15 different challenge when it comes to making a ruling.

16 And so the objection is sustained and of course

17 proceed with your line of questioning with another

18 question.

19             MR. OLIVERO: I guess I'm a little confused

20 as to how I would know what his assumption was if he's

21 saying that Ms. Pearce's assertion --

22             JUDGE JONES: Do you need your question read

23 back that was objected to?

24             MR. OLIVERO: No.  I have the question here.
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1             JUDGE JONES: Let's have the question read

2 back again, Ms. Reporter.

3             (Question read back by reporter)

4             JUDGE JONES: That's enough.  Thank you.

5             The question contains an assumption that

6 the witness found that assertion.  If you want to ask

7 the witness if he found that assertion somewhere you

8 can ask him, but the question as worded suggests that

9 he has stated that he found that assertion or contains

10 an assumption in that question that the witness found

11 that assertion.

12             If you want to throw an assumption into

13 that question there needs to be a citation in the

14 record for it.  I don't believe that has been

15 provided.  Or you can ask the question differently and

16 come at that assumption from a different direction.

17 Your call.

18             MR. OLIVERO: All right.  I'll try this

19 again.

20 BY MR. OLIVERO:

21        Q.   In those lines of your testimony at the end

22 you say "I dispute that assertion" which references

23 Ms. Pearce's testimony.  Can you tell me where in her

24 testimony that assertion would have taken place?
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1        A.   I can state that the statement was not

2 explicitly made.  I think that the word "assertion",

3 you might substitute the word "assumption" for

4 "assertion" and that would explain my answer better.

5        Q.   All right.  So if I'm understanding that, I

6 dispute that assumption rather than assertion, so you

7 were assuming that Ms. Pearce was suggesting somehow

8 that AIC would stop communicating with customers

9 altogether?

10        A.   I was making an assumption about her

11 assumption.

12        Q.   Okay.

13             MR. OLIVERO: Just one moment, Your Honor.

14             JUDGE JONES: Sure.

15             MR. OLIVERO: Your Honor, at this time I

16 think staff has no further questions.

17             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Is there any

18 redirect?

19             MR. KENNEDY: I have one brief redirect

20 question if I could just approach the witness for a

21 minute.

22             JUDGE JONES: Any objection to that

23 occurring?

24             MR. OLIVERO: No.
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1             MR. O'BRIEN: Your Honor, while counsel is

2 doing that I just wanted to note for the record that

3 the people have waived any cross of Mr. Kennedy.  In

4 lieu of cross we will be entering into evidence a data

5 response request.  I have not been able to print that

6 response yet, but I will bring it and make sure that

7 we enter it into evidence accordingly.

8             MR. KENNEDY: I'm ready, Your Honor.

9             JUDGE JONES: Redirect?

10             MR. KENNEDY: Yes, Your Honor.

11                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

12 BY MR. KENNEDY:

13        Q.   Mr. Kennedy, I just have one, actually two

14 questions to ask you.

15             Mr. Olivero, counsel for staff, asked you

16 about your objection to the baseline for 2014

17 advertising to be, that you found it objectionable

18 that staff was using historical spend to come up with

19 a 2014 spend for advertising.  Do you remember those

20 questions?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And you were going to try to -- you were

23 attempting to offer an explanation of why you thought

24 that historical spending, an average of historical
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1 spending was not representative of what the company

2 tends to do in 2014 for its gas advertising.  Would

3 you please just give that explanation now?

4        A.   Yes.  It is the company's position that now

5 more than ever our customers are demanding more

6 information.  It is public safety.  Communication is a

7 core value at Ameren Illinois.

8             As we make improvements to our gas

9 distribution system throughout the state we plan to

10 execute a number of communications in 2014 to address

11 and reach targeted constituents.

12             Some examples of that are the important

13 first responders of folks that come onto the scene

14 when there is a compromise to the gas system.

15             We're putting in new pipelines so we have

16 pipeline safety awareness that we need to execute with

17 educators, schools, municipal officials and customers.

18 Safe digging is always important.

19             And as we look into 2014 we see the need to

20 significantly accelerate the communication and

21 expenditures in talking to our customers about the

22 importance of being safe around digging. That will

23 include a fairly comprehensive multi-media campaign

24 because we need to have cost effective ways to reach
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1 those 806,000 customers.

2             And then the final, but not the least

3 important, is excavation, excavator's training.  We

4 continue to see a number of dig-ins and compromises to

5 the system.  I just had one recently where basically

6 we have to shut off the gas.  And it can disrupt

7 service to our customers, so we feel it's very

8 important to make sure that we accelerate the

9 communication.  And all of those require additional

10 expenditures.

11             All that said, I am very confident that we

12 will have the systems and the plan in place to fully

13 obligate the budget in 2014.

14        Q.   And I believe in your rebuttal testimony

15 page 27, lines 553 to 586 you identified those

16 activities, those incremental activities you just

17 mentioned?

18        A.   Yeah.  My testimony is outlined in

19 Exhibit 21.0 starting on page 27.  That outlines the

20 additional communications we plan to execute in 2014.

21        Q.   Thank you.

22             MR. KENNEDY:  That's all I have, Your

23 Honor.

24             JUDGE JONES: Recross?
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1             MR. OLIVERO: Yes, I just have one question.

2                   RECROSS EXAMINATION

3 BY MR. OLIVERO:

4        Q.   You had indicated in one of your responses,

5 Mr. Kennedy, that customers demand more information

6 apparently now than in the past.  How are you made

7 aware of that?

8        A.   We are made aware of that because of direct

9 communication that we get from our customers.  And as

10 we have made improvements to our gas system and

11 continue to modernize that system and update that

12 system it's generally requiring us to put additional

13 resources into public education, not just customers,

14 customers are obviously a critical component of that,

15 but we look at our key stakeholders, our vendors, the

16 excavators, all of those who are involved in

17 maintaining a safe and efficient gas system.

18             As those updates have been made it just

19 requires additional communication to make sure that

20 those, all those constituents are made aware of what

21 those changes are.

22        Q.   But just to be clear, you are saying the

23 customers are demanding more and you say you have

24 direct contact with them.  Is that -- are they sending
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1 you letters, are they sending you emails or phone

2 calls?

3        A.   We hear from customers when they have

4 issues.  When they -- and that's a key component of

5 our communication process and warnings to customers

6 and alerts to customers to let us know if they smell

7 gas.

8             In general I was making a statement that

9 because of the improvements that we're making to our

10 system and the updates and in general the fact that

11 today customers more than ever, given the amount of

12 information that's available to them, they do require

13 and demand more information from all of their service

14 providers and that makes it incumbent upon us to put

15 our resources in to make sure that we're getting them

16 the information that they need to be safer on that

17 system.

18             MR. OLIVERO: No more questions, Your Honor.

19             JUDGE JONES: Anything else for the witness?

20             MR. KENNEDY: No, Your Honor.

21             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

22             Mr. O'Brien, was there something you wanted

23 to mention about a DR response?  I'm not sure counsel

24 heard that before.  He was consulting with the
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1 witness.

2             MR. O'BRIEN: Oh, yes.  In lieu of crossing

3 Mr. Kennedy the people would move for admission a data

4 response request that Mr. Kennedy completed over the

5 weekend.  I have not had the opportunity to print out

6 that data request.  The response would be 24.01, I

7 believe my number is correct on that.

8             MR. KENNEDY: Is it BAP 24.01?

9             MR. O'BRIEN: AG.

10             MR. KENNEDY: I don't know.

11         (Brief discussion held off the record)

12             MR. O'BRIEN: Disregard.

13             MR. KENNEDY: Just so it's clear, it related

14 to a different witness.

15             MR. O'BRIEN: My apologies, Your Honor.  I

16 got witnesses confused.

17             JUDGE JONES: No problem.

18             MR. KENNEDY: The last witness is also our

19 witness and he is available, Your Honor.

20             JUDGE JONES: Ameren calls whom?

21             MR. KENNEDY: Mr. Stephen Colyer.

22                   (Witness sworn in)

23                       EXAMINATION

24 BY MR. KENNEDY:
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1        Q.   Can you please state your full name for the

2 record?

3        A.   My name is Stephen R. Colyer.

4        Q.   And what is your -- who is your employer?

5        A.   Ameren Illinois Company.

6        Q.   And what is your current title?

7        A.   I am Senior Director of Gas Operations and

8 Services.

9        Q.   And I'd like to ask you a few preliminary

10 questions about some of the testimony that you've

11 prepared for filing in this matter.

12             Do you have in front of you what's been

13 marked Ameren Exhibit 7.0 Revised which is the Revised

14 Direct Testimony of Stephen Colyer?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   With Exhibit, Ameren Exhibit 7.1 Revised?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   And this is your direct testimony; correct?

19        A.   Yes, it is.

20        Q.   And is this testimony that you prepared or

21 was prepared under your direction?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   And do you have any corrections today

24 concerning that testimony?
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1        A.   No.

2        Q.   Do you have any corrections?

3        A.   No, not on the Exhibit 7.0.

4        Q.   Are the answers to those questions true and

5 accurate to the best of your knowledge?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

8 today that are posed in the testimony you'd give the

9 same responses?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   Do you also have in front of you what's

12 been marked Ameren Exhibit 22.0 Revised which is the

13 revised rebuttal testimony that you prepared?

14        A.   It appears I have Rebuttal Testimony Ameren

15 Exhibit 22.0.

16        Q.   Does it appear now that you have a copy of

17 your revised rebuttal in front of you?

18        A.   Yes, I do.  Thank you.

19        Q.   And do you recognize this revised rebuttal

20 testimony?

21        A.   Yes.

22             MR. KENNEDY: And just so it's clear for the

23 record, Your Honor, Exhibit 22.0 has a confidential

24 and propriety version and a public version of that
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1 testimony.

2 BY MR. KENNEDY:

3        Q.   Do you also have in front of you Ameren

4 Exhibits 22.1 through 22.6 which were some of the

5 rebuttal exhibits?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Do you have a copy of Ameren Exhibit 22.7

8 Revised?

9        A.   Yes.

10             MR. KENNEDY: And for the record to make

11 that clear, that testimony also has a confidential and

12 propriety version and a public version for 22.7.

13 BY MR. KENNEDY:

14        Q.   And then do you last have a copy of Ameren

15 Exhibit 22.8 Revised?

16        A.   Yes, I do.

17        Q.   You've reviewed that testimony?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Do you have any corrections to that

20 rebuttal testimony, revised rebuttal testimony?

21        A.   No.

22        Q.   Is the information contained therein true

23 and accurate to the best of your knowledge?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

2 today would you give the same responses?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And lastly, do you have in front of you

5 what's been previously marked Ameren Exhibit 36.0

6 which is your surrebuttal testimony?

7        A.   Yes.

8             MR. KENNEDY: And just so the record is

9 clear, for this exhibit as well, for 36.0, there is a

10 confidential and proprietary version and a public

11 version of 36.0.

12 BY MR. KENNEDY:

13        Q.   And then lastly, in connection with that

14 surrebuttal testimony do you have copies of 36.1

15 through 36.5 Revised Exhibits?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   And is that surrebuttal testimony testimony

18 you prepared or was prepared under your direction?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

21 today you would give the same responses?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   And the information contained therein is

24 true and accurate to the best of your knowledge?
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1        A.   Yes, with some revisions.

2        Q.   Oh, yes.  Do you have any revisions to your

3 surrebuttal testimony?

4        A.   Yes, I do.

5        Q.   And what are those revisions?

6        A.   In Exhibit 36.5 Revised, the first row,

7 third column, there is a number stated of 375 and that

8 number should read 275.

9        Q.   Do you have any other revisions to that

10 Exhibit 36.5?

11        A.   Yes.  There is one other revision on

12 page 2, first row, fourth column there is in

13 parenthesis a number that reads dollar sign 3.5 and

14 that should read 3.5 percent.

15             MR. KENNEDY: And it's our intention, Your

16 Honor, as with the previous witnesses that have had

17 corrections on the stand that we will re-file 36.5,

18 which is already revised, it will be second revised

19 with the corrections, the two corrections that the

20 witness has identified in his testimony.

21             JUDGE JONES: Leave of 14 days is given for

22 that purpose.

23             MR. KENNEDY: At this time I'd like to move

24 the admission of the testimony that Mr. Colyer is
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1 offering.  That's Ameren Exhibits 7.0 Revised; Exhibit

2 7.1 Revised; Ameren Exhibit 22.0 Revised, both

3 confidential, proprietary and public versions; Ameren

4 Exhibit 22.1 through 22.6; Ameren Exhibit 22.7

5 Revised, both confidential, proprietary and public

6 versions; Ameren Exhibit 22.8 Revised; Ameren

7 Exhibit 36.0, both confidential and proprietary and

8 public versions; and then Ameren Exhibits 36.1 through

9 36.4 Revised; and then 36.5 which will be Second

10 Revised by the time it hits the e-Docket later this

11 week.

12             JUDGE JONES: Any objections or

13 clarifications with regard to those exhibits or

14 subject to that Motion?

15             Let the record show there are not.

16             Those exhibits are admitted into the

17 evidentiary record.

18             All the days I will mention are 2013.  7.1

19 Revised is submitted as filed by e-Docket on June the

20 5th; 7.1 Revised, admitted as filed on June the 5th;

21 22.0 Revised, confidential and public versions are

22 admitted as filed on August the 5th; 22.1 through 22.6

23 are admitted as filed on July the 10th; 22.7 Revised,

24 confidential and proprietary versions are admitted as
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1 filed on August the 5th; 22.8 Revised is admitted as

2 filed on August the 22nd; 36.0, both confidential and

3 public versions are admitted as filed on August 15th;

4 36.1 Revised through 36.4 Revised are admitted as

5 filed on e-Docket on August 22nd; lastly, 36.5 Second

6 Revised will be deemed admitted upon being filed

7 reflecting the above described corrections within the

8 14-day filing limit.  I think that's it.  Did I miss

9 any or misstate any?

10             MR. KENNEDY: No.  Thank you, Your Honor.

11 That's perfect.

12             And I believe, Your Honor, that staff

13 previously asked us to submit some DR's through Mr.

14 Colyer in lieu of cross and I believe Mr. Olivero has

15 those in his hand.

16             MR. OLIVERO: That is correct, Your Honor.

17             JUDGE JONES: Do you want to do that now?

18             MR. OLIVERO: Yes, I think before

19 adjournment.

20             JUDGE JONES: That's fine.

21             (ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 2, DGK 22.01, DGK

22 25.01-25.04, was then identified.)

23             MR. OLIVERO: Your Honor, it was the

24 agreement between AIC and staff that in lieu of cross
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1 we would admit what I've identified as ICC Staff Cross

2 Exhibit Number 2 which are a series of data request

3 responses and they include DGK 22.01, DGK 25.01, DGK

4 25.02, DGK 25.03 and DGK 25.04.

5             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

6             MR. KENNEDY: And for the record, the

7 company has no objection to the admission of these

8 DR's.

9             JUDGE JONES: Are there any objections or

10 clarifications with respect to the admission of ICC

11 Staff Cross Exhibit Number 2?

12             Let the record show that Staff Cross

13 Exhibit Number 2 is admitted into the evidentiary

14 record.

15             MR. OLIVERO: And you would like to have

16 this put on e-Docket as well?

17             JUDGE JONES: I think that would probably be

18 a little better.

19             MR. OLIVERO: Okay.

20             JUDGE JONES:  So you will be given the

21 filing within 14 days and then everyone will have

22 ready access to a copy of it.

23             The DR responses that comprise that exhibit

24 are the ones that Mr. Olivero identified, so I will
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1 not repeat them.

2             MR. OLIVERO: Thank you, Your Honor.

3             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

4             Did you have any other exhibits?

5             MR. OLIVERO: No.  Other than those data

6 request responses, no, Your Honor.  Thank you.

7             JUDGE JONES: It appears that counsel for

8 the people have some questions for this witness; is

9 that still the case?

10             MR. O'BRIEN: That is still the case, Your

11 Honor.

12                    CROSS EXAMINATION

13 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

14        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Colyer.

15        A.   Good afternoon.

16        Q.   My name is Tim O'Brien and I work for the

17 Attorney General's Office.

18             I would like to start in your rebuttal

19 testimony at about page 5.  And I will give you a

20 moment to get there.

21        A.   I'm ready.

22        Q.   Okay.  And I believe line 106, I just want

23 to start and get a little bit of clarification on what

24 you call in your testimony ongoing and routine costs.
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1 Do you see that reference on 106?

2        A.   Yes, I do.

3        Q.   Would you agree that when one is preparing

4 the forecast when that person -- sorry, I have to

5 rephrase this in my own head otherwise I end up saying

6 the word forecast about four times in a row.

7             When the person preparing the forecast is

8 forecasting what you would call ongoing and routine

9 costs would you agree that that person would know

10 based upon historical data how much of a resource

11 commitment would be needed to keep up with the routine

12 work load?

13        A.   Yes, generally I think I would agree with

14 that.

15        Q.   And for forecasting future cost levels of

16 AIC's ongoing and routine costs, is it fair to say

17 that this involves calculating a modest escalation of

18 actual spending from prior years to account for wage

19 rate changes and general inflation?

20             MR. KENNEDY: Tim, are you asking generally,

21 are you talking about labor or non-labor?  I'm just

22 not clear what kind of question you are asking.

23             MR. O'BRIEN: Just general.

24        A.   If you'd just restate that for me?
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1 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

2        Q.   Sure.  When one is forecasting future cost

3 levels of AIC's ongoing and routine costs is it fair

4 to say that this would involve calculating a modest

5 escalation of actual spending from prior years to

6 account for such things as wage rate changes and

7 general inflation?

8        A.   I think that's a fair statement.  And, for

9 example, you mentioned wage rates, I believe that's

10 done at a corporate level.

11        Q.   And I believe on line 108 you reference

12 activities that need to be performed.  Do you see

13 that?

14        A.   I do.

15        Q.   Now as you use that phrase do those

16 activities include both ongoing and routine items as

17 well as -- well, I'll stop there.  Do those activities

18 that need to be performed include ongoing and routine

19 items?

20        A.   My testimony says knowledge of activities

21 that need to be performed.  So, yes, it would be those

22 activities that we need to perform in conducting

23 business about any service to the customer.

24        Q.   Okay.  And I'm going to direct you down to
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1 113 where you testify about additional labor and

2 training costs?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Would you consider that one example of what

5 you've called a new initiative?  And I can give you a

6 cite to your testimony for a new initiative if you

7 like.

8             MR. KENNEDY: I certainly would like it.

9        A.   Yeah.

10 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

11        Q.   I apologize right now.  I think I added the

12 word "new" when I was doing this, but on line 110

13 where you are talking about initiating and/or

14 implementing initiatives that could add or subtract

15 from OM costs, would this additional labor and

16 training costs be an example of one of these

17 initiating and/or implementing initiatives?

18        A.   So I'll try to answer that or at least, I

19 think, if I understand what you are asking.  You know,

20 the example I used in the testimony here is that as

21 someone is budgeting or forecasting they would, I'll

22 cite an example, where they may know of an upcoming

23 retirement and so therefore they might forecast to

24 fill behind that retirement, so I don't know that I
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1 would call that specific example an initiative, but it

2 would be something you would do in the course of doing

3 a forecast, as an example.

4        Q.   Okay.  That's fair enough.  That's a fair

5 response to a rather inartfully worded question that I

6 had and I apologize.

7             Now right around line 115, 115, there we

8 are talking about -- and I'm sorry, it goes on to line

9 116, but forecasting anticipated costs to mitigate,

10 identify integrity management risks?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   I just want to talk about that section for

13 a minute.

14             With regard to these integrity management

15 initiatives, would you classify the scheduling of

16 these activities, work and costs to be flexible?

17        A.   I'm not sure what you mean by flexible.

18        Q.   Maybe I can ask it a different way.

19             Do you believe that AIC or AIC management

20 has some control over the pace at which it works on

21 mitigation of integrity management risks?

22        A.   Yes.  AIC does have an Integrity Management

23 Program and through that program we identify threats

24 and risks to the integrity of the system and try to
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1 prioritize those threats and risks.  And in doing so

2 we have tried to -- not tried to, we do, we identify

3 mitigating actions to -- or actions to mitigate those

4 risks.

5        Q.   And would you agree that integrity

6 management activities would be considered a continuing

7 responsibility of AIC management?

8        A.   The Integrity Management Program we have

9 is, you know, founded upon the requirements of the

10 regulations, so to the extent those regulations exist

11 and continue to exist will always be part of the

12 Integrity Management Program.

13        Q.   And would you agree with the statement that

14 AIC or AIC management has some discretion regarding

15 how aggressively it may approach specific mitigation,

16 risk mitigation activities, if you know?

17        A.   Yeah.  I think in general as we look at the

18 programs, you know, we do make judgments about what

19 actions will best mitigate risk.  And in making those

20 judgments we would define the extent of those

21 programs.

22        Q.   On page 6 -- and I promise after this first

23 set of questions we are going to pick up the pace a

24 little bit.
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1        A.   Okay.  That's fine.

2        Q.   On line 129 you mentioned iterative

3 discussions.  I presume you were present for these

4 iterative discussions?

5        A.   Yeah.  I think what I'm talking about here

6 is from my area of my group and so iterative

7 discussions would take place with me present.  There

8 may be iterative discussions between the directors

9 that report to me as well as their folks in their

10 various groups, but, yeah, in general in preparing the

11 forecast I'm knowledgeable of what's being developed

12 for my area.

13        Q.   Okay.  And in these itterative discussions

14 did AIC or members of the team that was present

15 consider alternative work plans, alternative project

16 schedules or staffing scenarios?  And to clarify

17 that --

18        A.   Go ahead.

19        Q.   I was just going to clarify that.

20 Alternatives before the final versions of the forecast

21 were selected?

22        A.   I would say generally, yes.  The point of

23 the discussions is to discuss the types of things that

24 were included in the forecast.  So I would say
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1 generally, yes, we are looking at alternatives

2 throughout as part of those discussions.

3        Q.   Okay.  In your testimony you've discussed

4 incremental activities and I think just an example of

5 this falls on page 7?

6             MR. KENNEDY: Of the rebuttal?

7             MR. O'BRIEN: Of the rebuttal, yes.  Page 7,

8 line 150.

9 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

10        Q.   This is just a general question, but are

11 incremental activities those that are additive to the

12 levels of historically normal ongoing activities?

13        A.   An incremental activity would be, could be

14 something that we're already doing and we're going to

15 pursue doing more of that activity or it could mean an

16 activity we haven't previously done and we would be

17 initiating.

18        Q.   And when you refer to incremental

19 activities at line 150 is it fair for me to assume you

20 mean that AIC would like to hire more employees --

21 strike that.

22             Mr. Colyer, would you say it is true that

23 AIC has always taken very seriously its obligation to

24 maintain adequate, safe and reliable gas delivery
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1 service?

2        A.   From my perspective my testimony is we do

3 take very seriously our obligations on safe and

4 reliable service, meeting our obligations of the

5 pipeline regulations and looking for ways to improve

6 the integrity of the system and strengthen pipeline

7 safety.

8        Q.   And has the company continuously invested

9 in a deliberate ongoing effort to strengthen pipeline

10 safety and improve integrity, if you know?

11             MR. KENNEDY: May I ask for a timeline of

12 that question when you say continuing?

13             MR. O'BRIEN: Historically.  Is that better

14 for clarification?

15             MR. KENNEDY: That's fine.  If the witness

16 wants a defined time period he'll ask.

17        A.   Can you restate the question, please?

18 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

19        Q.   Certainly.  Historically has the company

20 invested in a deliberate ongoing effort to strengthen

21 pipeline safety and improve integrity?

22        A.   Yes, from my perspective in my tenure at

23 the company I believe that's true.

24        Q.   And would you agree that generally gas
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1 distribution utilities must continue to invest in

2 staffing non-labor resources in order to meet

3 regulatory obligations and safety regulations?

4        A.   I do believe that we must always meet our

5 obligations under the pipeline safety regulations.

6             The pipeline safety regulations are minimum

7 standards and so I also believe that we have to look

8 at ways to strength pipeline safety and that could

9 mean doing things that are beyond the minimum

10 standards of the pipeline safety regulations.

11        Q.   In preparing your testimony did you review

12 AG/CUB witness Michael Brosch's labor adjustments

13 relating to the Watch and Protect Program?

14        A.   Can you identify which exhibit you are

15 talking about?

16             MR. KENNEDY: Non-labor adjustment or the

17 labor adjustment?

18             MR. O'BRIEN: The labor adjustment.

19 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

20        Q.   It's mentioned at -- in your rebuttal it's

21 page 8, but it's also found at AG/CUB Exhibit 5.1,

22 page 2, which I have a copy of that if you do not have

23 that handy.

24        A.   AG 5.1.
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1        Q.   Yes.

2             MR. KENNEDY: Page 2?

3             MR. O'BRIEN: I believe page 1 has the

4 labor.  Let me just double check that.

5             MR. KENNEDY: Can we go off the record for a

6 second?

7             JUDGE JONES: Off the record.

8          (Brief discussion held off the record)

9             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record.

10             MR. O'BRIEN: Your Honor, I'm going to

11 strike the last question that referred to Mr. Brosch's

12 labor adjustment on Watch and Protect Program.

13 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

14        Q.   Mr. Colyer, if you know, does the company

15 routinely add and lose employees nearly every month

16 due to retirements or other separations?

17        A.   Yes.  Each month I would say that there's

18 employees transferring to new jobs, perhaps

19 retirements, new employees being hired.  The staff is

20 a pretty dynamic process.

21        Q.   Okay.

22             MR. O'BRIEN: Your Honor, may I approach?

23             JUDGE JONES: Yes.

24             (AG Cross Exhibit No. 1, AG 20.13, was then
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1 identified.)

2 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

3        Q.   Mr. Colyer, I'm going to hand you what I

4 will mark as AG Cross Exhibit 1.  And this is a copy

5 of the of AG Data Request 20.13.  20.13.

6             MR. KENNEDY:  Mr. O'Brien, just for clarity

7 will the AG's Office be filing these similarly on

8 e-Docket?

9             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes, it is our intention to

10 file these on e-Docket, any cross exhibits.

11             MR. KENNEDY: Thank you.

12 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

13        Q.   Mr. Colyer, have you seen this response

14 before?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   And did you prepare the response to this

17 data request?

18        A.   I either prepared it or it was prepared

19 under my direction.  I certainly reviewed it.

20        Q.   Okay.  We're going to come back to this

21 data request in just a moment.

22             MR. KENNEDY: Just so it's clear for the

23 record, there's AG attached, 21.3 attached which has

24 not been provided to the witness.
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1             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes.  In fact, I just realized

2 that and we're seeking to quickly correct that.

3             MR. KENNEDY: Okay.  I just wanted to make

4 sure it was clear what he was shown.

5             MR. O'BRIEN: Okay.

6             Your Honor, we're going to move forward

7 away from that data request.  We are seeking to see if

8 we have a copy of the attachment.  If we do not have a

9 copy of the attachment we will not ask Mr. Colyer any

10 questions about that and we will not seek to admit it

11 into the record, if we do not have a copy of the

12 attachment.

13 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

14        Q.   Mr. Colyer, I'm going to hand you what I

15 will mark as AG Cross Exhibit 2.

16             MR. KENNEDY: And, Mr. O'Brien, will this

17 remain AG Cross Exhibit 2 if AG Cross Exhibit 1 does

18 not come into the record?

19             MR. O'BRIEN: If AG Cross Exhibit 1 does not

20 come into the record we'll adjust that.

21             JUDGE JONES: We'll have to talk about that.

22 We'll see what works best here.

23             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes, you will have the final

24 say on that, Your Honor.
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1 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

2        Q.   Now Mr. Colyer, I recognize on what I've

3 handed you that you did not prepare this response, it

4 was prepared by Mr. Ronald Pate.  Have you ever seen

5 this response?

6        A.   I have seen this response.

7        Q.   Okay.

8             MR. KENNEDY: Just so it's clear, Mr.

9 O'Brien didn't show me this before.

10             I don't have an issue with Mr. Colyer

11 talking about this response --

12             MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you, Mr. Kennedy.

13             MR. KENNEDY: --to the extent he has

14 knowledge of it.

15             MR. O'BRIEN: Correct.

16 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

17        Q.   Mr. Colyer, is it your opinion that all of

18 the positions forecasted by AIC to be needed or

19 necessary in 2013 are in fact essential positions?

20             MR. KENNEDY: Are you asking him whether

21 necessary means essential in his opinion?

22             MR. O'BRIEN: In his opinion.

23        A.   The positions for 2013, I believe that's

24 what you were referencing?
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1 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

2        Q.   Correct.

3        A.   Yes, I do believe that the forecasted

4 positions identified in 2013 which are approved by

5 executive management to be filled are needed.

6        Q.   I would like to move ahead to your

7 surrebuttal if we could, which counsel thought I'd

8 never get there.

9             MR. KENNEDY: Mr. O'Brien, are you moving

10 this into the record now?

11             MR. O'BRIEN: I'm going to come back to

12 that.

13             MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.

14 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

15        Q.   Specifically I'd like to direct you to

16 page 5, line 95.

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   In fact, actually your question starts at

19 95.  I'm a little more interested in the answer which

20 starts at 98 where you reference open positions.

21             Would you agree that there could be any

22 number of reasons for open positions when one compares

23 actual staffing to forecasted staff counsel?

24        A.   I think, if I understand the question, the
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1 position can become open for a number of reasons.

2        Q.   Could it include, like you talked about

3 before, retirements or unplanned terminations?

4        A.   People getting transferred.

5        Q.   Transferred, correct.

6             Could it also include a situation where it

7 takes longer to recruit, interview and actually hire a

8 replacement for an open position?

9        A.   Yeah, when you have an open position

10 there's a process that one would go through to fill an

11 open position.

12        Q.   Now we talked earlier about the company's

13 forecasted positions and 2013 being essential.  Do you

14 also believe that all of the 2014 positions are

15 essential forecasted positions?

16             MR. KENNEDY: And again, this is essential

17 being equal to necessary?

18             MR. O'BRIEN: Correct.

19        A.   I believe the positions in 2014 are

20 essential.  We provided in discovery the purpose and

21 need of the 21 positions we've identified in the 2014

22 test year.

23 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

24        Q.   If you know, is AIC currently operating at
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1 a level equal to what has been viewed as the 2013

2 essential level of staffing?

3        A.   I'm not quite sure I understood what you

4 were asking on the 2013 staffing.  We're operating at?

5        Q.   Do you know if AIC is operating at a level

6 consistent with what the company has established as

7 being an essential staffing level, if you know?

8             MR. KENNEDY: Are you asking if the position

9 is still open?

10             MR. O'BRIEN: If that would be a fair

11 classification.

12        A.   In my surrebuttal, and I don't remember

13 where, what the reference is at the moment, I could

14 find it, we identify the number of open positions

15 remaining to be filled in 2013 that would bring AIC to

16 its 2013 labor forecast.  So there are some open

17 positions at this time.

18        Q.   And I believe, if I've read your testimony

19 properly, it's 42, if I'm looking at line 149 on

20 page 8 of your surrebuttal, 26 union and 16

21 management?

22        A.   148?

23        Q.   149.

24             MR. KENNEDY: And for clarification, that's
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1 as of the end of June 2013.

2             JUDGE JONES: Wait a minute.  What?

3             MR. KENNEDY: The numbers that are being

4 quoted of the 26 and 16 are open positions as of the

5 end of June 30th, 2013, so not open as of today.

6             JUDGE JONES: Well, are you testifying?

7             MR. KENNEDY: No, I was just clarifying for

8 him.

9             JUDGE JONES: Just a minute.  I mean, do you

10 want something back from Mr. O'Brien on that if that's

11 what he meant --

12             MR. KENNEDY: Yeah.

13             JUDGE JONES: -- or if he accepts that?

14             MR. KENNEDY: No, that's what I was asking,

15 if that's what he was asking, making it clear he

16 wasn't asking as of today.

17             MR. O'BRIEN: Correct.  It would be as of

18 the point in time that Mr. Colyer testified to.

19        A.   Yes.  40 -- as of the end of June, 42

20 positions remained open.  And I think as part of the

21 surrebuttal we identified at that time the jobs that

22 were remaining to be filled in an exhibit.

23 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

24        Q.   Now as of the end of June 2013 would you
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1 consider that being under the level of essential

2 staff, having those 42 open positions?

3        A.   I would describe it as the open positions

4 represent 42 positions remaining to be filled to

5 achieve our 2013 labor forecast.

6        Q.   In your opinion, in any way do you view

7 being -- I don't want to say it that way because I

8 don't want to mischaracterize your testimony here.

9 We'll come back to that.

10             I'd like to ask you a couple of questions

11 about cross bore inspections and R-O-W clearing.  And

12 I believe that starts on page 20 of your surrebuttal

13 testimony.

14        A.   Okay.

15        Q.   So on line 412, 412, you note that AIC

16 plans to clear approximately 75 miles per year over a

17 ten-year period; correct?

18        A.   Correct.

19        Q.   Would this 75 miles per year be the basis

20 for the expenses that were proposed in the forecast?

21        A.   Yeah.  So what we've provided is we've

22 identified high pressure distribution clearing as an

23 activity to undertake as part of our Integrity

24 Management Program and so we'd estimated that we had
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1 about 750 miles to clear, so ostensively we're talking

2 about approximately 75 miles per year, so we

3 forecasted for 2014 to begin that first 75 miles.

4        Q.   Do you recall offhand what amount was

5 forecasted?

6        A.   I can find it.

7        Q.   Okay.  I can probably guide you to

8 something if you like.

9        A.   That would be great.

10        Q.   I think in AG/CUB Exhibit 1.10?

11             MR. KENNEDY: I think that's Mike's.

12             Can we go off the record?

13             JUDGE JONES: Off the record.

14          (Brief discussion held off the record)

15             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record.

16        A.   I believe it's 1.2 million.

17 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

18        Q.   Okay.  Now let's keep on this same exhibit

19 that you were just -- that we were just talking about

20 here.

21             On page 2, compared to historical spending

22 is it correct that AIC spent only $50,000 in 2011 and

23 $170,000 in 2012 on R-O-W clearing contractors?

24        A.   Yeah, that's what's stated in that exhibit.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Let's say hypothetically the

2 commission approved and included the $1.2 million for

3 expanded R-O-W clearing in 2014.  What assurances, if

4 you are able to say, could the company provide to the

5 commission that it would actually spend the money

6 required to clear 75 miles per year over a ten-year

7 period?

8             MR. KENNEDY: I'm going to object to that

9 question.  I don't think it's -- are you asking for

10 him to promise to spend the money?  I think it's

11 speculative or maybe not even a question it's in his

12 position to give.

13             MR. O'BRIEN: That's why I asked if he is

14 able to say.

15             MR. KENNEDY: So he personally or he as a

16 company representative?

17             MR. O'BRIEN: He as a company

18 representative.

19             JUDGE JONES: Do you need the question read

20 back, sir?

21        A.   Yes, please.

22             JUDGE JONES: Ms. Reporter, can you read the

23 question back, please?

24             (Question read back by reporter)
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1        A.   As I stated in the testimony, the purpose

2 of clearing the right-of-way is really to -- as part

3 of our Integrity Management Program and so we provided

4 that forecast in the test year to clear approximately

5 75 miles a year.

6             As I sit here today I believe we fully

7 intend to follow through on that expenditure.  If you

8 are asking me if I can provide absolutes, I can simply

9 say that I think the intent is to clear 75 miles a

10 year at approximately 1.2 million.

11 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

12        Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.

13             MR. O'BRIEN: Your Honor, in lieu of further

14 cross I approached company counsel earlier about a set

15 of DR's as a group exhibit which I would be happy to

16 give everyone a copy of right now.

17             MR. KENNEDY: Mr. O'Brien, I hate to ask, is

18 this number 3 or number 2 or number 3 pending number

19 1?

20             MR. O'BRIEN: I would like to do whatever is

21 least confusing for Your Honor.

22             JUDGE JONES: Let me ask you this.  Is this

23 intended to be multiple exhibits or one group exhibit?

24             MR. O'BRIEN: We could do this as one group
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1 exhibit.  And, Your Honor, we will be striking what we

2 had offered as AG Cross Exhibit Number 1.  We were

3 unable to locate the attachment, so we will strike

4 that.

5             MR. KENNEDY: Or alternatively we could just

6 move 2 and 3 into the record and leave 1 marked.

7             JUDGE JONES: What?

8             MR. KENNEDY: As an alternative we could

9 move 2 and 3 into the record and not worry about Cross

10 Exhibit 1.

11             JUDGE JONES: As long as the record is clear

12 that Cross 1 is not being offered we can keep that

13 identification number and it will be an exhibit that

14 is not admitted.

15             MR. O'BRIEN: And alternatively, Your Honor,

16 I could talk to counsel about this, but we will not

17 ask questions of Mr. Colyer on AG Cross Exhibit 1, but

18 if we are able to print and locate a copy of attach 1

19 we could then offer it.

20             MR. KENNEDY: No, I'll object to that.  Mr.

21 O'Brien, I apologize, but if the witness had the

22 ability to look at the document and you asked him --

23 you at least tried to ask him a question about it then

24 I could have the opportunity to ask him questions
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1 about the attachment had it been here, so I'll have to

2 object to the admission of that DR.

3             JUDGE JONES: We'll get back to one.  So AG

4 Cross Exhibit 3 then is a group, group exhibit?

5             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes.  And if you like, Your

6 Honor, I can read the data responses contained in the

7 group into the record.

8             JUDGE JONES: Yeah, that would probably be a

9 good idea.

10             MR. O'BRIEN: AG Cross Exhibit 3 for

11 identification includes the company's response to AG

12 17.01; the company's response to AG 20.03; the

13 company's response to AG 20.04; the company's response

14 to AG 20.05; and the company's response to AG 20.12.

15             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Any objections or

16 clarifications with respect to AG Cross Exhibit 3?

17             MR. KENNEDY: No, Your Honor.  These are all

18 DR responses that are sponsored by the witness and we

19 have no objection to them coming into the record.

20             JUDGE JONES: AG Cross Exhibit Number 3 is

21 hereby admitted into the record.  It consists of

22 various DR responses that were identified by Mr.

23 O'Brien.  That will not be repeated by me.  What's the

24 status of the second AG Exhibit Number 2?
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1             MR. KENNEDY: The company doesn't have any

2 objections to it.  We note in response that Mr. Ronald

3 Pate sponsored in the discovery, but for purposes of

4 this testimony this witness will be adopted in that

5 response and we have no objection to it coming into

6 the record.

7             JUDGE JONES: And this may already be clear,

8 but I will make sure AG Cross Exhibit Number 2

9 consists of which response number?

10             MR. O'BRIEN: That is the company's response

11 to AG Data Request 20.15.

12             JUDGE JONES: And that's being offered; is

13 that right?

14             MR. O'BRIEN: That is correct, Your Honor.

15             JUDGE JONES: We've heard from counsel for

16 Ameren Illinois.  Does anybody else have any

17 objections or clarifications with respect to AG Cross

18 Exhibit Number 2?

19             All right.  Let the record show that AG

20 Cross Exhibit Number 2 is admitted into the

21 evidentiary record.  And we will be filing these on

22 e-Docket?

23             MR. O'BRIEN: That is correct, Your Honor.

24 One final note, on AG Cross Exhibit Number 3 there is
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1 one data request response on AG 17.01.  The response

2 references a confidential and proprietary CD

3 containing an Ameren gas operating and maintenance

4 plan.

5             The purpose of our entering this into the

6 record does not involve that maintenance plan, so I

7 just want it noted for the record that we would not be

8 offering the maintenance plan into the record.

9             MR. KENNEDY: And the company has no

10 intention of asking the witness about the 2,000 pages

11 in that plan.

12             JUDGE JONES: All right.  Thank you.  AG

13 Cross Exhibit 2 is admitted and it's noted that that

14 is the AG response to AG-DR as in data request 20.15.

15             Now with respect to AG Cross Exhibit 1, is

16 that still under construction or what are the plans

17 and intentions with respect to that exhibit or is that

18 exhibit completed?

19             MR. O'BRIEN: If there were some way that we

20 could get it printed up while the witness was still on

21 the stand then we would pursue AG Cross Exhibit 1, but

22 if we can't make that happen then we will withdraw.

23             JUDGE JONES: Do you still have questions of

24 this witness?
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1             MR. O'BRIEN: I have no further questions of

2 Mr. Colyer.  Thank you.

3             JUDGE JONES: Is there redirect?

4             MR. KENNEDY: If I could approach the

5 witness and take a two-minute break to see if we have

6 any redirect; would that be permissible?

7             JUDGE JONES: Two minutes you say?

8             MR. KENNEDY: Yes, just step outside for a

9 couple minutes.

10             JUDGE JONES: Go ahead. We hereby take a

11 two-minute break for that purpose.  Off the record.

12             (A short break was then taken)

13             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record.  Is there

14 redirect for the witness?

15             MR. KENNEDY: Yes, Your Honor, we have a

16 couple of questions, the company does, for the

17 witness.

18                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

19 BY MR. KENNEDY:

20        Q.   Mr. Colyer, you remember earlier counsel

21 for AG had directed you to AG/CUB Exhibit 1.10 which

22 is an attachment to Mr. Brosch's direct which was a DR

23 response that you prepared, AG -- response to AG

24 12.12; do you recall those questions about the high



167

1 pressure distribution R-O-W clearing?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   And I believe he directed you to the

4 spending for 2011 and 2012 for that particular

5 non-labor expense item.  Do you remember those

6 questions?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Are there prior years that the company has

9 pointed to in your testimony that supports a level of

10 forecast expense for this non-labor item for clearing

11 that you have talked about in your testimony?

12        A.   Yeah.  What I've talked about in my

13 testimony is the forecast for 2014.  In the prior

14 years we've not expended as much.  And high pressure

15 distribution right-of-way clearing is to, is part of

16 our integrity management initiative.

17             You know, there's a number of purposes for

18 it.  First and foremost damage prevention, mitigation

19 of damage for these high pressure critical facilities.

20 So when we clear these facilities we clearly mark the

21 facility as well as identifying the extent of the

22 right-of-way to mitigate encroachment, encroachment on

23 the right-of-ways and pipelines.  So that's the

24 purpose of the forecast.
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1        Q.   Are there -- he specifically pointed you to

2 2011 and 2010 spending.  Are there other historical

3 years that the company has pointed to to support a

4 high level of expense assuming that the company

5 intends to do the 75 miles of clearing per year?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   And what years were those?

8        A.   In 2007 and 2008 we were clearing

9 right-of-way on our transmission system and in those

10 years we were, and I think I included a work paper in

11 surrebuttal, in those years we were clearing some

12 heavily wooded area in 2008.  We spent about 139,000

13 and cleared about eight miles and in 2007 we spent

14 about 450,000, cleared 27.2 miles.

15        Q.   And what are some of the factors that can

16 cause clearing to vary from year to year in terms of

17 the amount of expense it could cost to do a particular

18 mile?

19        A.   I would say in general the condition of the

20 right-of-way.  And what I mean by condition is how

21 heavily wooded that is.  Right-of-way can range from

22 large diameter trees to smaller trees down to brush

23 and grass and so if you are in a heavily wooded area

24 the costs of the equipment required to clear that
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1 right-of-way are going to be much larger than if you

2 are in a less wooded area or in the instance where

3 you've actually cleared the right-of-way you are more

4 into a maintenance mode where you are simply primarily

5 doing mowing and spraying and those costs are much

6 less.

7             So as we clear the right-of-way in future

8 years the maintenance costs of that right-of-way have

9 been clearly significantly less.  In the outer years

10 as we get into the program 5, 6, 7 or 8 years, up to

11 ten years, they will be less than they are projected

12 into 2014 and the next several years.

13        Q.   So the conditions of the land that would be

14 cleared would impact the type of equipment that the

15 contractor can use since this is a non-labor contract

16 expense?

17        A.   That's what I'm saying.  So if you are in

18 maintenance mode and you are primarily doing mowing

19 and spraying you're talking about, you know, simple

20 mowing equipment, brush hogging equipment.

21             When we were -- back in 2007 and '08 I did

22 have the opportunity to go out on one of the

23 right-of-ways where we had some heavily wooded areas

24 and they used very large equipment, a trackhoe with
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1 large spinning blades on it that, you know, can take

2 down large trees, that's a very expensive piece of

3 equipment.  That equipment might run 18 to 20,000 a

4 week to operate versus mowing and spraying, you know,

5 would be probably -- would be substantially less than

6 that.

7        Q.   And why does the company consider the

8 clearing of right-of-ways on a cyclical pattern to be

9 something that would support reliability and accuracy

10 of gas delivery service?

11        A.   Well, as I said, first and foremost having

12 the right-of-ways cleared and clearly marked where the

13 pipeline is at is a risk mitigation related to damage

14 prevention.  These pipelines are high pressure, so if

15 they are impacted through damage where someone, you

16 know, can't clearly identify where it's at, you know,

17 it can impact not just a number of customers, it can

18 impact communities, so first and foremost clearly

19 marking these lines so that they are identifiable.

20             Encroachments, if folks, customers, the

21 public does not know where the pipelines are at, they

22 are not clearly marked, they can unknowingly encroach

23 on a right-of-way and build structures closer to the

24 pipeline than they should be.
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1             Also related to distribution integrity,

2 being able to access and perform effective leak

3 surveys, emergency response, that was needed.  Those

4 are all reasons why clearing right-of-way is an

5 important activity.

6        Q.   Counsel for AG also asked you a couple

7 questions about the company's integrity, management

8 risk program.  Do you remember those questions?

9        A.   Yeah.

10        Q.   Or that line of questioning?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Do you -- is it your understanding that at

13 some point in the case the expert witness, Mr. Brosch

14 for AG, had made an adjustment for non-labor expense

15 for Ameren Integrity Management Program for 2014?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   But at this point is that adjustment still

18 being proposed on non-labor?

19        A.   No.  In Mr. Brosch's rebuttal testimony he

20 accepted our forecasted amount for non-labor integrity

21 management costs, non-labor costs.

22        Q.   With respect to the Integrity Management

23 Program and Mr. Brosch's labor adjustment, are there

24 some -- is there some labor positions that Mr. Brosch
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1 is still seeking to disallow on integrity management

2 for internal labor despite the fact that he's agreed

3 with the non-labor analysis?

4        A.   Yes.  In the 2014 forecast of what I've

5 described as essential positions, we have six

6 forecasted additions related to integrity management.

7 In addition to that -- engineering positions related

8 to integrity management.  In addition to that, I think

9 as I outlined in my surrebuttal, we also have three

10 records management specialists related to data

11 development, data conversion, data integrity related

12 to data integrity programs.  So in 2014 we've got

13 about nine positions forecasted related to integrity

14 management.

15        Q.   And you would consider the incremental

16 labor, internal labor that the company has forecasted

17 for this particular program to be, you know, as

18 important and necessary as the non-labor portion has

19 been forecasted?

20        A.   Yes, I would, because they are both

21 supporting the same programs, the transmission and

22 distribution integrity management programs.

23             MR. KENNEDY: Those are all the questions I

24 have for redirect, Your Honor.
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1             JUDGE JONES: Any recross, Mr. O'Brien?

2             MR. O'BRIEN: Just quickly one question.

3                   RECROSS EXAMINATION

4 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

5        Q.   Mr. Kennedy just asked you about

6 right-of-way clearance and I believe in your response

7 you mentioned the years 2007 and 2008?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   In either of those years did AIC clear at

10 least 75 miles?

11        A.   No.  As I stated, according to the

12 information I have in the work paper, in 2007 we

13 cleared 27.2 miles and in 2008 7.79 miles.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Colyer.

15             MR. O'BRIEN: I have no further questions.

16             JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir.

17        A.   Thank you.

18             JUDGE JONES: Off the record to discuss

19 scheduling related things.

20          (Brief discussion held off the record)

21                   CLOSING PROCEEDINGS

22             JUDGE JONES: Back on the record.  There was

23 an off the record discussion focusing primarily on

24 what tomorrow's scheduling would entail.  It appears
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1 that the witness lineup is still intact, with the

2 cross estimates being updated earlier today and still

3 holding at least at this point.

4             The first witness is Bonnie Pearce.  There

5 was some discussion of the start time and I believe

6 that 9:30 is the time that the parties can live with.

7 Ms. Pearce is the first witness.  If there is some

8 chance she may not be available until 10:00, if that's

9 the case, then she will go on at 10.

10             There is a pending motion to strike which I

11 will not be saying very much about today since not all

12 the counsel are present at this time.  That is, there

13 are some parties who would be affected by that ruling

14 whose counsel are not present at this point in the

15 day.  We'll have a reply coming in later today from

16 the Citizens Utility Board pursuant to some scheduling

17 that was put into place on Friday.

18             As far as what will happen with respect to

19 that motion in the morning, we'll take it up at least

20 to some degree at 9:30 or shortly after that.  I will

21 have a couple of questions for parties at that time,

22 but what will occur after that remains a topic that we

23 will need to deal with in the morning.

24             Does anybody have any questions or
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1 clarifications regarding any of the above?

2             Let the record show they do not.

3             Is there anything else we would like to

4 take care of now before we conclude for the day?  Are

5 there any witnesses that will not be crossed whose

6 testimony you'd like to put in at this time?

7             MR. O'BRIEN: In fact, Your Honor, I was

8 going to ask you about that.  The AG and CUB has three

9 witnesses at this point that we will be entering their

10 testimony by Affidavit.  We don't have the Affidavits

11 prepared yet.  They are with the witnesses currently,

12 but we will be filing those this week on e-Docket, but

13 I was going to ask you when would be best to enter

14 them into the record.

15             JUDGE JONES: Which witnesses are they, just

16 so we're clear; they are joint witnesses?

17             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes.  And that would be David

18 Effron, Ralph Smith and Scott Rubin.

19             JUDGE JONES: If you want to offer those at

20 this time subject to the Affidavits being filed

21 pursuant to leave I can get that in the books, that's

22 okay.

23             MR. O'BRIEN: As long as I have all the

24 exhibit numbers here in front of me.
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1             JUDGE JONES: Yeah, I think they are on your

2 exhibit list, aren't they?

3             MR. O'BRIEN: Yes.

4             JUDGE JONES: So I think we should have that

5 handy.  That should take care of it.

6             Does anybody have a problem with doing it

7 that way?  That way we'll have one less thing to do

8 later.

9             All right.  Mr. O'Brien, do you want to

10 proceed with that?

11             MR. O'BRIEN: Just one second.  I'm locating

12 a copy of our exhibit list so I make sure I don't miss

13 anything.

14            (Brief statement off the record)

15             JUDGE JONES: If you want to jump in and go

16 next and then when Mr. O'Brien can get his hands on a

17 copy of the exhibit list we'll do that after you've

18 finished, Mr. Sagone.

19             MR. SAGONE: Thank you, Your Honor.  Staff

20 would move for the admittance into the record of all

21 of its staff witness pre-filed testimony filed on the

22 commission's e-Docket system, two witnesses, Michael

23 Ostrander and Dr. David Reardon.

24             Starting with Mr. Ostrander, ICC Staff
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1 Exhibit 3.0, the pre-filed Direct Testimony of Staff

2 Witness Mike Ostrander which consists of a cover page,

3 table of contents, eight pages of narrative testimony;

4 Attachment A; Schedule 3.01, confidential and public

5 versions; and Schedule 3.02, which was filed on

6 e-Docket on June 11th, 2013.

7             Next, ICC Staff Exhibit 12.0 which is the

8 pre-filed rebuttal testimony of Mike Ostrander

9 consisting of a cover page, table of contents, seven

10 pages of narrative testimony; Schedule 12.01,

11 confidential and public versions, Attachment A;

12 Attachment B, confidential and public versions; and

13 Attachment C, which was filed on e-Docket on August 7,

14 2013.

15             Next, ICC Staff Exhibit 12.2 which is an

16 Affidavit of Mike Ostrander in support of his

17 pre-filed testimony which we would anticipate will be

18 filed on e-Docket by the end of the week.

19             And I do want to note just for the record

20 that Mr. Ostrander originally was scheduled for cross,

21 but the only party that had cross for him was the

22 company and they have waived cross for him.

23             And then next, Dr. David Reardon --

24             JUDGE JONES: Let's back up to Mr. Ostrander
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1 for just a second.  So the direct is 3.0; correct?

2             MR. SAGONE: Correct.

3             JUDGE JONES: And the rebuttal is 12.0; is

4 that right?

5             MR. SAGONE: That's correct.

6             JUDGE JONES: And then did you say there was

7 a 12.2?

8             MR. SAGONE: Yeah.  That will be the

9 Affidavit of Mr. Ostrander which we actually have

10 prepared, but we have not filed yet.

11             JUDGE JONES: Is there a 12 something?

12             MR. SAGONE: We named it 12.2 to avoid any

13 confusion with his Schedule 12.01.

14             JUDGE JONES: Fair enough.  One question

15 about his direct.  You say there is a confidential

16 version; is that true?

17             MR. SAGONE: Yes.  Actually, the only thing

18 that is confidential in the direct testimony is the

19 Schedule 3.01.

20             JUDGE JONES: And 3.01 is actually part of

21 3.0; is that correct?

22             MR. SAGONE: That is correct.

23             JUDGE JONES: The only question I have there

24 is, is 3.0, is that marked as confidential anywhere on
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1 the face page of that exhibit?

2             MR. SAGONE: It is not, Your Honor.

3             JUDGE JONES: Well, I'll just make a note of

4 that.  We can get back to that as necessary, that is,

5 whether that confidential designation needs to appear

6 on the face of that testimony since the schedule is

7 actually part of it.

8             MR. SAGONE: And then I guess the same would

9 apply to Staff Exhibit 12.0 which has the Schedule

10 12.01.  It's confidential and public.  And then the

11 Attachment B is confidential and public, but the

12 testimony itself has nothing confidential in it.

13             JUDGE JONES: All right.  We'll take a look

14 at that a little more closely and see if that needs to

15 be -- a version needs to be filed that says

16 confidential on the face.  I'm not sure offhand, so

17 I'll have to take a look at that and staff counsel can

18 take a look at that and we'll see if the rules seem to

19 contemplate that and if that's necessary.

20             In any event, let the record show staff

21 exhibits 3.0, and 12.0 are admitted into the

22 evidentiary record subject to the submission of an

23 Affidavit to be identified and filed as Staff

24 Exhibit 12.2 in 14 days.  3.0 was filed on June 11 and
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1 12.0 on August 7, 2013.  And then you had some other

2 witnesses exhibits; is that right?

3             MR. SAGONE: That is correct, Your Honor.

4 The next is ICC Staff Exhibit 7.0 which is the

5 pre-filed direct testimony of staff witness Dr. David

6 Reardon which consists of a cover page and 13 pages of

7 narrative testimony, which was filed on e-Docket on

8 June 11, 2013.

9             Next is ICC Staff Exhibit 16.0 which is the

10 pre-filed rebuttal testimony of Dr. David Reardon

11 which consists of a cover page, table of contents,

12 16 pages of narrative testimony and Attachments A

13 through F which was filed on e-Docket on August 7th,

14 2013.

15             And then finally we would have ICC Staff

16 Exhibit 16.1 which would be the Affidavit of Dr.

17 David Reardon in support of his pre-filed testimony

18 which we would anticipate will be filed on e-Docket

19 before the end of the week.

20             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Any clarifications

21 or objections for any of that?

22             Let the record show there are not.

23             ICC Staff Exhibit 7.0 filed on June 11,

24 2013, and 16.0 filed on August 7, 2013, are admitted
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1 into the evidentiary record as filed on e-Docket

2 subject to a filing of the related Affidavit of the

3 witness to be identified as ICC Staff Exhibit 16.1.

4 Thank you.

5             Did you have any others for today?

6             MR. SAGONE: That's it.  Thank you, Your

7 Honor.

8             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

9             Mr. O'Brien, turning back to you?

10             MR. O'BRIEN: Well, we never did find the

11 exhibit list, but I'd be happy to go through it

12 anyway.

13              Your Honor, at this time the people of the

14 State of Illinois as well as the Citizens Utility

15 Board would like to move into the record the following

16 exhibits which have been pre-filed on e-Docket

17 starting with AG/CUB Exhibit 1.0, Direct Testimony of

18 Michael L. Brosch filed on e-Docket June 11, 2013 and

19 AG/CUB Exhibits 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, 1.6, 1.7,

20 1.8, 1.9, and 1.10 all filed on e-Docket June 11,

21 2013, and all are the schedules and attachments of

22 Michael L. Brosch.

23             Your Honor, we're going to strike what I

24 just told you, all of the exhibit 1's.  Those may be
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1 moved in tomorrow morning, but company counsel was

2 nice enough to remind me that they've not waived Mr.

3 Brosch, so I apologize for starting with him.

4             The people and Citizens Utility Board would

5 like to move into the record AG/CUB Exhibit 2.0,

6 Direct Testimony of Mr. David J. Effron filed on

7 e-Docket June 11, 2013, as well as AG/CUB Exhibit 2.1

8 schedules and attachments of David J. Effron filed on

9 e-Docket June 11, 2013; AG/CUB Exhibit 3.0, Direct

10 Testimony of Dr. Scott J. Rubin filled on e-Docket

11 June 11, 2013, along with AG/CUB Exhibits 3.1, 3.2,

12 3.3, 3.4 all filed on e-Docket June 11, 2013.  And all

13 are the schedules and attachments of Scott. Rubin.

14             AG/CUB Exhibit 4.0 Direct Testimony of

15 Ralph C. Smith and AG/CUB Exhibit 4.1, schedules and

16 attachments of Ralph C. Smith, both filled on e-Docket

17 June 11, 2013.  There's also AG/Cub Exhibit 4.2 and

18 AG/CUB Exhibit 4.3 also filed on e-Docket June 11,

19 2013, and also schedules and attachments of Ralph C.

20 Smith.

21             The people and CUB would also be moving

22 into the record AG/CUB Exhibit 6.0, Rebuttal Testimony

23 of David J. Effron, AG/CUB Exhibit 6.1, schedules and

24 attachments of David Effron, AG/CUB Exhibit 6.2,
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1 schedules and attachments of David J. Effron, all

2 filed on e-Docket August 7, 2013, along with AG/CUB

3 Exhibit 7.0 Rebuttal Testimony of Scott J. Rubin and

4 AG/CUB Exhibit 7.1, schedules and attachments of Scott

5 J. Rubin, all filed on e-Docket August 7, 2013.

6             Finally, the Rebuttal Testimony of Ralph C.

7 Smith designated as AG/CUB Exhibit 8.0 filed on

8 e-Docket August 7, 2013.  These will also be filed

9 along with Affidavits from Mr. Effron, Mr. Rubin and

10 Mr. Smith.  Exhibit numbers to be determined.

11             JUDGE JONES: Thank you.  Any objections or

12 clarifications regarding those items that have been

13 offered?

14             Let the record show there are not.

15             The AG/CUB exhibits identified in the

16 record are hereby admitted into the evidentiary record

17 as filed on e-Docket on the filing dates noted in the

18 Motion.  And that is subject to the filing of

19 Affidavits with respect to them to be filed within

20 14 days.

21             MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you, Your Honor.

22             JUDGE JONES: Were there any other no cross

23 testimonies to be offered into the record at this

24 time?
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1             Let the record show there are none.

2             I guess that will cover it for today.

3 Anything else before we conclude today's hearing?  If

4 not, at this time let the record show that today's

5 hearing is over.  In accordance with the above we will

6 resume at 9:30 am tomorrow morning.  Thank you all.

7             MR. KENNEDY: The company would like a copy

8 of the transcripts to be sent by e-mail to Mr. Edward

9 Fitzhenry who is general counsel for the company.

10             MR. O'BRIEN: No copy for me.

11

12              HEARING CONCLUDES AT 3:15 P.M.
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